
 

 
Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 hours 
prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

December 14, 2016 

 

Page 1 of 2  
 

 

.. 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

December 14, 2016 
Closed Session 6:00 PM 
Regular Session 7:00 PM 

 

1) CONVENE CLOSED SESSION_______________________________________________________________ 
1A. Call Closed Session to Order 
1B. Roll Call  
1C. Public Comment – Closed Session Items 
1D. Closed Session Agenda:  Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation: Significant exposure to 
 litigation pursuant to  Government  Code Section 54956.9(b), 1 case 
1E.  Report from Closed Session 
2) OPEN SESSION__________________________________________________________________________  
2A. Call Open Session to Order  
2B. Pledge of Allegiance 
2C. Roll Call 
2D. Approval of Agenda Order 
This is the time for changes to the agenda to be considered including removal, postponement, or change to the agenda sequence. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: By motion, accept the agenda as presented or amended. 
3) CONSENT CALENDAR____________________________________________________________________ 
Matters on the Consent Agenda are routine in nature and will be approved by one blanket motion with a Council vote. No 
discussion of these items ensues unless specific items are pulled for discussion and separate action.  If you wish to have an item 
pulled from the Consent Agenda for discussion, please notify the City staff. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Consent Calendar 
3A.  Minutes City Council Meeting of November 9, 2016 

Recommendation:  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of November 9, 2016. 
3B. Cash Summary Report – October 2016 
 Recommendation:  Receive and File. 
4) COUNCIL, STAFF AND OTHER REPORTS______________________________________________________ 
The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and issues discussed at 
committee meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be made on these issues. If a member of the 
Council prefers formal action be taken on any committee reports or other information, the issue will be placed on a future Council 
meeting agenda. 

4A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items - All Councilmembers 
4B. City Operations Update – City staff 
4C. Additional Reports – Agency partners 
5) PUBLIC COMMENT______________________________________________________________________ 
Members of the audience are permitted to address the Council on matters of concern to the public within the subject jurisdiction of 
the City Council that are not listed on this agenda. Please make your comments as brief as possible; not to exceed three (3) minutes 
in length. The Council cannot act on items not included on this agenda; however, if action is required it will be referred to staff. 

6) PUBLIC HEARINGS________________________________________________________________ 
6A. Sierra Oaks Estates Vesting Subdivision Map and Village Oaks Apartments Design Review 

STAFF PRESENTATION: Amy Feagans, Planning Director  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 48-2016 adopting the Mitigated Negative Declaration, 
approving a Lot Line Adjustment, approving the Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for the Sierra Oaks 
Estates, approving the Design Review for the Village Oaks Apartments, and approving a Sign Permit for 
Entry Signage. 

 
 



 

 
Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 hours 
prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

December 14, 2016 

 

Page 2 of 2  
 

7) COUNCIL BUSINESS_____________________________________________________________________ 
7A. Public Works Vehicle Purchase 
 PRESENTATION Wes Heathcock, Community Services Director  
 RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution 49-2016 approving the purchase of two public works vehicles 
 from Winner Chevrolet in an amount not to exceed $88300. 
7B. Introduction and first reading of Ordinance 531: an Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Colfax 

repealing and amending chapter 15.04 and 15.08 of the Colfax Municipal Code and adopting by 
reference the most recent editions of the following standard codes: the California Building Standards 
Code (Cal. Code Of Regs. Title 24) including the California Administrative Code (Part 1),  the California 
Building Code (Part 2), the California Residential Code (Part 2.5), the California Electrical Code (Part 3), 
the California Mechanical Code (Part 4), the California Plumbing Code (Part 5), the California Energy 
Code (Part 6), the California Historical Building Code (Part 8), the California Fire Code (Part 9), the 
California Existing Building Code (Part 10), the California Green Building Standards Code (Part 11- Cal 
Green)  & the California Referenced Standards Code (Part 12) together with amendments and 
additions to the various codes providing for penalties for the violation thereof, repealing all other 
ordinances in conflict therewith 

 STAFF PRESENTATION:  John Schempf, City Manager 
 RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Introduce the proposed ordinance  by title only, waive the first reading and 
 schedule a public hearing for second reading and adoption at the January 11, 2017 regularly scheduled 
 City Council Meeting to be effective 30 days thereafter. 
7C. Acceptance of Donated Property on Main Street 
 STAFF PRESENTATION:  John Schempf, City Manager 
 RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution 50-2016 accepting the donation of the parcel of land identified 
 as 433 N. Main Street (APN 006-010-015) 
7D. Results of November 8, 2016 Election 
 PRESENTATION:  Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk  
 RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution 51-2016: Declaring Results Of The General Municipal 

Election Held On December 8, 2016. 
7E. Oath of Office and Seating of New Council Members and City Treasurer 

PRESENTATION:  Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk  
RECOMMENDATION:  Recognition of retiring Mayor and Oath of Office of newly elected Council 
member and City Treasurer for the term beginning December 14, 2016 through the first City Council 
Meeting after Certification of the November 2020 election. 

7F. Rotation of City Council Officers: Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem 
PRESENTATION:  John Schempf, City Manager 

 RECOMMENDATION:  By Separate Motions, Select Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem  
 
8.  ADJOURNMENT TO RECEPTION FOR OUTGOING AND INCOMING COUNCILMEMBERS________ 

*CAKE AND REFRESHMENTS IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE MEETING* 
I, Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk for the City of Colfax declare that this agenda was posted  

at Colfax City Hall and the Colfax Post Office. The agenda is also available on the City website at www.Colfax-ca.gov.  
 
 

Administrative Remedies must be exhausted prior to action being initiated in a court of law.  If you challenge City Council action in court, you may be limited to 
raising only those issues you or someone else raised at a public hearing described in this notice/agenda, or in written correspondence delivered to the City Clerk 
of the City of Colfax at, or prior to, said public hearing. 

 

http://www.colfax-ca.gov/


 

City of Colfax 1 
City Council Minutes November 9, 2016 
 

  

City of Colfax 
City Council Minutes 
Regular Meeting of Wednesday, November 9, 2016 
City Hall Council Chambers 
33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 
 

 

 

1 CONVENE CLOSED SESSION 
1A. Call to Order 

Mayor Parnham called the meeting to order at 6:30PM. 
1B. Roll Call 

Councilmembers present:  Douglass, Harvey, Parnham, Stockwin 
Recused:  Councilmember Hesch was recused due to a conflict with this item. 

1C. Public Comment – Closed Session Items 
No public comment 

1D. Closed session agenda 

 Conference With Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation: Significant exposure to litigation 
 pursuant to  Government  Code Section 54956.9(b), 1 case 
Closed session ended at 7:00PM. 
 

City Manager Schempf reminded everyone the preliminary results of the election for two Council 
members, City Treasurer and Measure H which are posted on the County website are not final 
counts.  The County has until December 9, 2016 to certify the election.  However, Mr. Ryan most 
likely has enough votes for City Treasurer. 

 

2 OPEN SESSION 

2A. Call to Order 
Mayor Parnham called the open session to order at 7:06PM. 

2B. Pledge of Allegiance 
Sergeant Ty Conners led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2C. Roll Call 
Council members present:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 

2D. Report from Closed Session 
City Attorney Cabral reported Councilmember Hesch was recused from closed session.  
There was no reportable action on the closed section item.  Council agreed to continue the 
discussion during closed session at the next Council meeting. 

2E. Approval of Agenda Order 
On a motion by Councilmember Stockwin, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Harvey, the City 
Council approved the agenda. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 
 

3 PRESENTATIONS 

3A. Proclamation for Sergeant Ty Conners 
Mayor Parnham presented Sergeant Ty Conners with a proclamation acknowledging his 
meritorious service award from the Placer County Sheriff’s Office and thanking him for his 
service to Colfax. 
 
 

ITEM 3A
1 of 6



 

City of Colfax 2 
City Council Minutes November 9, 2016 
 

 

4 CONSENT CALENDAR 
4A. Minutes City Council Meeting of October 26, 2016 

Recommendation:  Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 26, 2016. 
4B. Quarterly Investment Report – September 30, 2016 

Recommendation:  Accept and File. 
4C. Sales and Use Taxes Report – Fiscal Year 2015-2016 

Recommendation:  Information only. 
4D. Approve $500 Seed Money to sponsor Winterfest, 2016 

Recommendation:  Approve request from organizers. 
4E. Cancel Second Meetings in November and December 

Recommendation:  Approve cancellation of November 23, 2016 meeting and December 
28, 2016 meeting. 
 

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Harvey and seconded by Councilmember Stockwin, 
Council approved the Consent Calendar. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 
 

5 COUNCIL, STAFF, AND OTHER REPORTS 
5A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items – All Councilmembers 

Councilmember Hesch 
 Councilmember Hesch attended the Coffee with Supervisor Montgomery meeting. 
 He congratulated Tim Ryan on his successful bid for City Treasurer and thanked 

Sergeant Conners for his service to the community.   
Councilmember Stockwin 

 Councilmember Stockwin also congratulated Mr. Ryan and thanked Sergeant 
Conners for his contributions to Colfax. 

Councilmember Douglass 
 Councilmember Douglass attended two Economic Development meetings, the 

Homecoming Parade, the Spaghetti Feed fundraiser for Winterfest, a fundraiser for 
a cat shelter in Auburn and a meeting with the Placer County Treasurer regarding 
a proposal to create a Joint Power Authority for alternative energy sources. 

Mayor Pro Tem Harvey 
 Mayor Pro Tem Harvey warned citizens of a bobcat in the area which is preying on 

neighborhood cats. 
Mayor Parnham 

 Mayor Parnham attended the Economic Development meeting in Roseville, the 
Placer County Sheriff’s Office awards and two of the Candidate’s meetings.  
 

5B. City Operations – City Staff 
City Manager Schempf 

 City Manager Schempf attended the Coffee with Supervisor Montgomery. 
 He stated staff has been working on the new insurance package for employees.  

They met with Caltrans representatives to discuss the proposed roundabout, and 
have started the processes to conduct the Sewer Rate Study. 

 He has received the application to expand the Colfax Sphere of Influence from 
LAFCO. 

 The General Manager of NID is scheduled for a presentation at the next meeting. 

ITEM 3A
2 of 6



 

City of Colfax 3 
City Council Minutes November 9, 2016 
 

5C. Additional Reports – Agency Partners 
Sergeant Conners, Placer County Sheriff’s Office Colfax Substation Commander 

 Sergeant Conners mentioned the passage of the recreational marijuana measure.  
Enforcement of marijuana use in public places is in flux.  He suggested Council 
consider an ordinance regarding smoking on City property. 

 He gave a report of recent activities and acknowledged the efforts of Colfax 
officers, stating calls for service are down and many of the calls are actually “wave 
down calls”.  Citizens feel comfortable flagging down the officers, which is a great 
indicator of good community relations. 

 He reported the final rendering of the Skatepark design is on the special Facebook 
page for the skatepark.  Fundraising efforts are in progress.  

Chris Nave, Gold Run California Highway Patrol (CHP) Public Information Officer 
 Officer Nave reported the CHP will be on maximum enforcement over the 

Thanksgiving Weekend to ensure everyone gets where they are going safely. 
 The Gold Run office has a new commander, Jeff Niemen. 
 He cautioned the audience to stay focused while driving the I-80 corridor and be 

alert for drowsy drivers. 
Frank Klein, President of the Colfax Area Chamber of Commerce  

 Mr. Klein stated the next Chamber Mixer will be hosted by the Chamber at the 
Depot on December 5 from 4-7:30.   

 He asked for volunteers to serve on the Chamber Board. 
 

6 PUBLIC COMMENT 
Eli Beardsley, area businessman 

 Asked if the election results will be posted on the website.  He was informed that 
they will be posted once the election in certified. 

 

7 PUBLIC HEARING 
7A. Mitigation Impact Fees 
 STAFF PRESENTATION:  John Schempf, City Manager 
 RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Conduct public hearing, review annual report, consider public 
 and staff comments, accept report and adopt Resolution 45-2016:  Accepting and 
 approving the Annual AB 1600 Mitigation Fee Report and Making Findings Pursuant to 
 Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 3.56 and the Mitigation  Fee Act (Government Code 
 §66000 Et Seq) 
 

Mayor Parnham opened the public hearing at 7:40 PM. 
 

City Manager Schempf explained developers of properties are levied fees which are designated to 
mitigate impacts to City infrastructure.  The fees are set and applied to accounts such as Parks, or 
Roads. 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Harvey stated the way these fees are divided cannot be changed once the fees 
are changed.  Typically the fees are allocated by percentage to the various accounts.  This would 
be the time to change the allocations. 
 

City Attorney Cabral reiterated the allocation types cannot be changed, but the specific uses 
within the allocation can be changed.  
 

ITEM 3A
3 of 6



 

City of Colfax 4 
City Council Minutes November 9, 2016 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Harvey stated the City needs to obtain CDBG disadvantaged community status.  
He commented CDBG funds can be used to leverage mitigation fees.  He recommends hiring a 
CDBG consultant and considering changing the distribution percentage of mitigation fees at a 
future meeting.   
 

Councilmember Hesch agrees with these ideas and would like to help with the process. 
 

Chamber President Klein asked why CDBG funds were not available as they have been helpful for 
businesses in the past.  City Manager Schempf stated the funds are controlled more tightly than 
in the past, but are still available. 
 

Mayor Parnham closed the hearing at 7:54PM. 
 

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Harvey, seconded by Councilmember Douglass, City Council 
approved Resolution 45-2016. 
AYES:   Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 
 

8 COUNCIL BUSINESS 

8A. Permanent Dam in Wastewater Treatment Plant Pond 1 (EQ Basin) – Design 
Process 
STAFF PRESENTATION:  Travis Berry, Technical Services Manager  
RECOMMENDATION:  Discuss and direct staff as appropriate. 
 

Technical Services Manager Berry explained the Equilization Basin (EQ Basin) regulates 
the flow of influent into the Wastewater Treatment Plant.  The current dam to create the 
EQ Basin was installed as a temporary measure.  It has been very effective and needs to be 
replaced with a permanent structure. 
 

Council discussed the project and directed staff to instruct the resident engineer to create 
a preliminary design and cost estimate.   
 

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Harvey and a second by Councilmember Hesch, Council 
approved beginning the process of design and cost estimates for a permanent EQ Basin. 
AYES:   Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 
 

8B. Adopt-a-Road 
STAFF PRESENTATION:  Wes Heathcock, Community Services Director  
RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution 46-2016 approving the Adopt-a-Road Program 
and authorizing the City Manager to administer the Adopt-a-Road Program. 
 

Community Services Director Heathcock introduced the proposed program and explained 
the locations of the proposed stretches of road available for adoption. 
 

Council discussed the program and directed staff to add a clause requiring the applicant 
to obtain liability insurance similar to the insurance required for event organizers. 
 

There was no public comment. 
 

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Harvey, seconded by Councilmember Hesch, the Council 
unanimously approved Resolution 46-2016. 
AYES:   Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 

ITEM 3A
4 of 6



 

City of Colfax 5 
City Council Minutes November 9, 2016 
 

8C. Employee Health Insurance Coverage with CalPERS 
STAFF PRESENTATION:  John Schempf, City Manager 
RECOMMENDATION:   

 1)  Adopt Resolution 47-2016:  Electing to be Subject to the Public Employees’ 

Medical and Hospital Care Act at Unequal Amounts for Employees and Annuitants (the 

standard CalPERS contract). 

 2)  Authorize the City Manager to contract with Burnham Benefits for Vision, 

Dental and Life Insurances  for Represented and Non Represented Employees 

 3)  Approve offering a health benefits package to Non Represented Employees 
beginning January 1,  2017. 
 

City Manager Schempf reminded Council the union contract (MOU) requires the City to 
select insurance providers for represented employees and for employees to gradually pay 
an increasing portion of benefits over the five year term of the contract.  CalPERS has 
been selected as the best provider for health benefits.  A secondary contract for Vision, 
Dental and Life insurance will be provided by Burnham Benefits with Council’s approval.  
The third portion of this item is to approve offering insurance benefits for the three non-
represented employees at the rate the represented employees will receive in 5 years at 
the end of the Union MOU.  The non-represented employees currently receive a low 
stipend.  This will be an unbudgeted cost to the City but will help retain valuable staff 
members. 
 

Council briefly discussed the issues. 
 

Tim Ryan, 300 S Main Street, stated his experience as a CalPERS retiree is very positive.  
Offering benefits will help with retention and hiring of quality employees. 
 

On a motion by Councilmember Stockwin and a second by Councilmember Hesch, Council 
unanimously approved adopting Resolution 47-2016 which serves as the contract with 
CalPERS, authorized the City Manager to contract with Burnham Benefits and approved 
offering insurance benefits to non-represented employees beginning January 1, 2017 at 
the rate it will be offered to represented employees per the union MOU in 2020. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 
 

8D. Emergency Preparedness: Generators 
STAFF PRESENTATION:  John Schempf, City Manager 
RECOMMENDATION:  Verbal Report – Discuss and direct staff as appropriate. 
 

City Manager Schempf state the City currently owns two generators which are not in use.  
He recommended the City install them in the Sierra Vista Community Center (SVCC) to 
effectively use the Center as a heating/cooling emergency shelter and also at the Sheriff’s 
office for emergency communications.  There would be a cost to install the generators.   
Mayor Pro Tem Harvey suggested the City contact the County to help pay for the cost of 
installing the generator at the SVCC since it is a regional facility.   
Councilmember Hesch commented the generators are not powerful enough to run the 
entire buildings and staff needs to be selective about which circuits to connect.   
 

ITEM 3A
5 of 6



 

City of Colfax 6 
City Council Minutes November 9, 2016 
 

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Harvey and second by Councilmember Hesch, Council 
directed staff to determine the feasibility of installing the generators and bring a report 
back to Council. 
AYES:  Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 
 
Before adjourning the meeting, Mayor Parnham reminded everyone the next meeting is 
scheduled for December 14, 2016 and Winterfest will be held on December 10, 2016. 
 
 

9 ADJOURNMENT 
 

As there was no further business on the agenda, Mayor Parnham adjourned the meeting 
at 8:51PM. 
 

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 14nd day of December, 2016 
 

 

ITEM 3A
6 of 6



 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE  DECEMBER 14, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: John Schempf, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE: November 7, 2016 
SUBJECT: City of Colfax Cash Summary Report: October 2016 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and file City of Colfax Cash Summary Report: October 2016. 
 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:  
These monthly financial reports include General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs and the City of Colfax 
Cash Summary Report (with supporting documentation).  The reports are prepared monthly on a cash basis 
and are reconciled to the General Ledger accounting system, previous reports, and bank statements.  
Detailed budget comparisons are provided as a mid-year report and also as part of the proposed budget 
process each year. 
 
The purpose of the reports is to provide status of funds and transparency for Council and the public of the 
financial transactions of the City. 
 
The attached reports reflect an overview of the financial transactions of the City of Colfax in  
October 2016.  Monthly highlights include: 

 Negative cash fund balances in Fund 250 - Streets& Roads and Fund and Fund 370 - Capital Funds 
are due to timing of funding allocations and reimbursements.   

 The annual payment for the State Water Resource Board loan was paid in October - $438,974. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs 
a. Cash Analysis – Balance 
b. Expenses by Month 
c. Revenues by Month 

2. Cash Activity Reports  
a. Cash Summary 
b. Cash Transaction Report – by individual fund 
c. Check Register Report  - Accounts Payable 
d. Daily Cash Summary Report (Cash Receipts) 

ITEM 3B
1 of 12



C
ity

of
C

ol
fa

x
-

O
ct

o
b

er
20

16
G

en
er

al
F

un
d

R
es

er
ve

d
C

as
h

A
na

ly
si

s
(D

ol
la

rs
in

T
h
o
u
sa

n
d
s)

$
1
,0

0
0

F
r

Y
a
r

20
1%

17
>

$
8
0
0

$
6
0
0

$
4
0
0

$
2
0
0

$(
20

0)

$(
40

0)
___

___
:zE

:%%
_I

$(
60

0)
—

P
re

vY
r

Ju
l

A
ug

S
ep

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec

Ja
n

F
eb

M
ar

A
pr

M
ay

Ju
n

C
as

h
B

al
an

ce
F

Y
20

16
-1

7
$
8
3
8

$
8
2
9

$
7
5
0

$8
35

$8
97

J
C

a
s
h

B
al

an
ce

F
Y

20
15

-1
6

$
7
6
8

$
6
7

0
$
6
6
6

$5
62

$
5
6
1

$6
01

$
4
6
6

$7
17

$
6

4
7

$
5

6
9

$6
05

$8
31

83
8

iw
C

a
s
h

B
al

an
ce

F
Y

20
14

-1
5

$
2
4
0

$1
81

$
2
1
7

$
1
6
7

$
2
0
9

$
2
8
4

$2
53

$
5
2
8

$4
91

$
4

8
9

$3
85

$6
91

77
3

-
—

-
—

C
as

h
B

al
an

ce
F

Y
20

13
-1

4
$1

5
$(

57
)

$(
20

)
$4

5
$(

55
)

$(
34

)
$3

6
$
2
3
3

$
1

3
4

$6
9

$7
9

$2
25

24
0

C
as

h
B

al
an

ce
F

Y
20

12
-1

3
$(

28
7)

$(
28

6)
$(

31
4)

$(4
3$

)j
$(

38
3)

$(
39

1)
$(

38
0)

$(
22

1)
$(

17
3)

$(
14

4)
$(

21
2)

$3
7

15

.i
*

R
e
se

rv
e
s(

O
p
s,

C
a
p
,p

e
n
)

$4
45

$
4
4

5
$4

45
$4

45
$4

45
$4

45
$4

45
$4

45
$4

45
$4

45
$4

45
$4

45
44

5

=
B

u
d

g
et

F
Y

20
16

-1
7

$
8
3
8

$
8
3
8

$
8
2
5

$
8

1
2

j
$
7
9
9

$
7
8
6

$7
73

$
7
6
0

$7
47

$
7

3
4

$
7

2
1

$
7

0
8

$6
95

*C
jty

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

po
li

cy
st

ip
u
la

te
s

G
en

er
al

F
un

d
R

es
er

ve
of

25
%

(3
m

o
n
th

s)
of

an
nu

al
G

en
er

al
F

un
d

R
ev

en
ue

s.

ITEM 3B
2 of 12



$2
50

$2
00

$1
50

C
ity

of
C

ol
fa

x
-

O
ct

o
b

er
20

16
G

en
er

al
F

un
d

R
es

er
ve

d
C

as
h

-
E

xp
en

se
s

by
M

on
th

(D
ol

la
rs

in
T

h
o
u
sa

n
d
s)

S
S

he
ri

ff
/F

ir
e

S
P

ay
m

en
t

-
W

in
ne

r
P

ro
pe

rt
y

(P
ur

ch
as

e
lo

an
pm

t)

S
A

ud
it

S
er

vi
ce

s

I
$1

00

$5
0

Ju
l

A
ug

S
ep

O
ct

S
G

en
er

al
E

xp
en

se
s

S
A

ni
m

al
C

on
tr

ol
C

o
n
tr

ac
t

a
In

su
ra

nc
e

D
ep

os
it

to
SC

O
R

E
R

is
k

Po
ol

N
ov

D
ec

Ja
n

F
eb

M
ar

A
pr

M
ay

Ju
n

ITEM 3B
3 of 12



C
ity

of
C

ol
fa

x
-

O
ct

o
b

er
20

16
G

en
er

al
F

un
d

R
es

er
ve

d
C

as
h

-
R

ev
en

ue
s

by
M

on
th

(D
ol

la
rs

in
T

ho
us

an
ds

)

$2
50

—
—

—
—

—
-

“
.

-
*

$2
00

—
-
—

-
-
-
—

-
-

-
-
-
-
-

$1
50

—
—

-
-
-

-
“

$1
00

1
—

,
,
“
,

f
l

,
.
,
“

-
,
,

,
*

*

$5
0

$
Ju

l
A

ug
S

ep
O

ct
N

ov
D

ec
Ja

n
Fe

b
M

ar
A

pr
M

ay
Ju

n

I
F

ra
nc

hi
se

s
(W

A
V

E
,

R
ec

ol
og

y,
PG

E)
a

M
o
to

r
V

eh
ic

le
In

L
ie

u
s

O
th

er
P

ro
p
er

ty
T

ax
S

S
al

es
T

ax
S

B
us

in
es

s
L

ic
en

se
s

S
P

la
nn

in
g

F
ee

s

$3
50

$3
00

“

ITEM 3B
4 of 12



City of Colfax
Cash Summary

October 31, 2016

Revenues In Expenses Out

Attached Reports:
1 . Cash Transactions Report (By Individual Fund)
2. Check Register Report (Accounts Payable)
a Cash Receipts - Daily Cash Summary Report

Payroll Checks and Tax Deposits
Utility Billings - Receipts

$ 195,807.83
$ (522,197.44)

(66,703.96)
151,364.60

150,000.00 $
(150,000.00) $

316,112.61
3,432,161.02
3,748.273.63

Prepared by: tL(JLL..VC(f) jir )-m t 1 /7 1) 1
Laurie Van Groningen, FinanceOirector ‘

Reviewed by:

John Schempt, City Manager
ii ?///

Balance
09/30/2016

USBank $ 413,325.46 $
LAIF $ 3,576,677.14 $
Total Cash - General Ledger $ 3.990.002.60 $

Petty Cash (In Safe)

Total Cash

Transfers

428,364.29 $
5,483.88

433,848.17 $

Balance
10/31/2016

(675,577.14) $
$

(675,577.14) $. , . . ‘ . ,. - $ .

$ 300.00 $ 300.00

$ 3,990,302.60 $ 433,848.17 $ (675,577.14) $ - $ 3,748,573.63

Change in Cash Account Balance - Total $ (241 ,72&97)

$
$
$
$
$
$
$ (241 ,728.97) $

ITEM 3B
5 of 12



City of Colfax

Cash Transactions Report - October 2016

Fund Type: 7 .7 1 - General Fund - Unassigned
Fund: 100 - General Fund
Fund: 120 - Land Development Fees
Fund: 570 - Garbage Fund

_______________ __________

Fund Type: 1.11 - General Fund - Unassigned

Fund Type: 1.14 - General Fund - Restricted
Fund: 571 - AB939 Landfill Diversion
Fund: 572 - Landfill Post Closure Maintenance
Fund Type: 1.14 - General Fund - Restricted

Fund Type: 1 .34 - Capital Projects - Restricted
Fund: 350 - Street Improvement Projects
Fund: 370 - North Main Street Bike Route
Fund Type: 1 .34 - Capital Projects - Restricted

Fund Type: 2.1 1 - Enterprise Funds - Unassigned
Fund: 560-Sewer $
Fund: 561 - Sewer Liftstations $
Fund: 563 - Wastewater Treatment Plant
Fund: 564 - Sewer Connections
Fund: 565 - General Obligation Bond 1978
Fund: 567 - Inflow & Infiltration
Fund Type: 2.1 1 - Enterprise Funds - Unassigi

Fund Type: 9.0 - CLEARING ACCOUNT
Fund: 998 - PAYROLL CLEARING FUND
Fund Type: 9.0 - CLEARING ACCOUNT

Beginning Debit Credit Ending
Balance Revenues (Expenditures) Balance

$
$
$
$

1,035,353.80 $
23,882.94 $

(216,812.50) $
842A24.24 S

95,703.26

11,612.41
107,315.67

$
$
$
$

(52,161.68) $
(150.00) $

(86.12) $
(52,397.80) $

1,078,895.38
23,732.94

(205,286.21)
897,342.11

$ 30,517.26 $ - $ (1,200.00) $ 29,317.26
$ 768,455.89 $ 19,656.91 $ (3,381.79) $ 784,731.01
$ 798,973.15 $ 19,656.91 $ (4,581.79) $ 814,048.27

Fund Type: 1 .24 - Special Rev Funds - Restricted
Fund: 210 - Mitigation Fees - Roads $
Fund: 21 1 - Mitigation Fees - Drainage $
Fund: 212 - Mitigation Fees - Trails $
Fund: 213 - Mitigation Fees - Parks/Rec $
Fund: 214 - Mitigation Fees - City Bldgs $
Fund: 215 - Mitigation Fees - Vehicles $
Fund: 217 - Mitigation Fees - DT Parking $
Fund: 218 - Support Law Enforcement $
Fund: 241 - CDBG Housing Rehabiliation $
Fund: 244 - CDBG MicroEnterprise Lending $
Fund: 250 - Streets - Roads/Transportation $
Fund: 253-GasTaxes $
Fund: 270 - Beverage Container Recycling $
Fund: 280 - Oil Recycling $
Fund: 286-CommunityProjects $
Fund: 292 - Fire Department Capital Funds $
Fund: 342 - Fire Construction - Mitigation $
Fund: 343 - Recreation Construction $
Fund Type: 1 .24 - Special Rev Funds - Restric S

49,038.59 $
3,049.66 $

42,724.88 $
97,841.35 $

944.60 $
4,493.65 $

26,631.18 $
(25,000.00) $
94,295.50 $

115,850.91 $
(39,923.88) $
13,967.33 $
32,939.31 $

517.35 $
5,266.76 $

140,146.68 $
2,429.12 $
2,429.57 $

567.642.56 S

73.17
4.35

60.85
139.34

1.35
6.40

37.93
40,307.15

134.29
163.08

13.36
46.91

5.86
7.51

2,462.85
3.46
3.46

43.471 .32

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
S

(500.00) $ 48,611.76
- $ 3,054.01
- $ 42,785.73
- $ 97,980.69
- $ 945.95
- $ 4,500.05
- $ 26,669.11
- $ 15,307.15
- $ 94,429.79
- $ 116,013.99

(8,140.27) $ (48,064.15)
(1,496.50) $ 12,484.19

- $ 32,986.22
(98.90) $ 424.31

- $ 5,274.27
- $ 142,609.53
- $ 2,432.58
- $ 2,433.03

(10.235.671 $ 600.878.21

$ 24,035.55 $ 34.23 $ - $ 24,069.78
$ (31,244.01) $ - $ (42.30) $ (31,286.31)
$ (7,208.46) $ 34.23 $ (42.30) $ (7,216.53)

475,831.34 $ 137,667.35 $ (84,534.40) $ 528,964.29
361,704.81 $ 18,736.98 $ (9,825.88) $ 370,615.91

$ 545,857.10 $ 48,903.17 $ (447,093.15) $ 147,667.12
$ 41,080.00 $ - $ - $ 41,080.00
$ 2,065.60 $ 115.22 $ - $ 2,180.82
$ 361,632.26 $ 1,128.53 $ (162.19) $ 362,598.60
$ 1,788,171.11 $ 206,551.25 $ (541,615.62) $ 1,453,106.74

$ - $ 56,818.79 $ (66,703.96) $ (9,885.17)
$ - $ 56,818.79 $ (66,703.96) $ (9,885.17)

$ 3,990,002,60 $ 433,848.17 $ (675,577.14) $ 3,748,273.63Grand Totals:

ITEM 3B
6 of 12



Check Register Report

CITY OF COLFAX

Checks Processed October 2016 Date: 11/04/2016

Time: 10:20am
BANK: US BANK Page: 1

Check Check Status Void/Stop Vendor Vendor Name Check Description AmountNumber Date Date Number

us BANK Checks

52065 10/13/2016 Printed 01121 3FOLD COMMUNICATIONS RRG OUTREACH 1,200.00
52066 10/13/2016 Printed 01302 AFFORDABLEAUTO GLASS 92’ CHEV PICKUP 163.50
52067 10/13/2016 Printed 01414 ALHAMBRA& SIERRASPRINGS WATER CITY HALL/CORP 113.57
52068 10/13/2016 Printed 01448 AMERIGAS - COLFAX PROPANE FIRE HOUSE 18.84
52069 10/13/2016 Printed 01448 AMERIGAS - COLFAX PROPANE SHERIFFS OFFICE 14.89
52070 10/13/2016 Printed 01460 AMERIPRIDE UNIFORM UNIFORMS & CLEANING 589.83

SERVICE SUPPLIES
52071 10/13/2016 Printed 01766 AT&T MOBILITY SEPT2016 CELL PHONES 681.30
52072 10/13/2016 Printed 01772 AUBURNACES BASEBALL AUBURNACES DOUBLE HEADER- 200.00

TEAM
52073 10/13/2016 Printed 01777 AUBURN ENDURANCE EVENTS, THE WILDEST RIDE 100.00

LLC
52074 10/13/2016 Printed 02199 BEACH BUMS, LLC CATERING FOR MEETING 453.27
52075 10/13/2016 Printed 02829 BLUE RIBBON PERSONNEL ACT & LABOR TEMPS 3,697.23

SERVICES
52076 10/13/2016 Printed 03121 CALIFORNIABUILDING BUILDING FEE REPORT 17.10
52077 10/13/2016 Printed 03511 COLFAX GARDEN CLUB COLFAX GARDEN CLUB SPRING 100.00
52078 10/13/2016 Printed 07591 COLFAX GREEN MACHINE COLFAX 3RD OF JULY - EVENT 100.00
52079 10/13/2016 Printed 03516 COLFAXJR FALCONS TAILGATE/SILENTAUCTION 100.00

FOOTBALL
52080 10/13/2016 Printed 03540 COLFAX LIONS CLUB COLFAX 3RD OF JULY PARADE 100.00
52081 10/13/2016 Printed 03574 COOKS PORTABLE TOILETS & PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL! 232.13
52082 10/13/2016 Printed 04250 DEPARTMENT OF FEE REPORT 07/01 - 09/30/16 9.34

CONSERVATION
52083 10/13/2016 Printed 08084(2) WES HEATHCOCK, RETRAINING MILAGE REIMB. 100.22
52084 10/13/2016 Printed 08660 HUNTAND SONS, INC. FIRE DEPARTMENT FUEL 422.74
52085 10/13/2016 Printed 12180 LAWRENCE & ASSOCIATES INC AUG 2016 LAND FILL 55.00
52086 10/13/2016 Printed 13193 MARK THOMAS & COMPANY S. AUBURN ROUNDABOUT 500.00
52087 10/13/2016 Printed 16011(2) PELLETREAU, ANDERSON & SEPT 2016 SERVICES 4,961.25

CABRAL
52088 10/13/2016 Printed 16035 PG&E STMT 09/22/2016 22,623.93
52089 10/13/2016 Printed 16500 PLACER OPERATIONALAREA Q1 FIRE PROTECTION 5,488.90
52090 10/13/2016 Printed 18400 RIEBES AUTO PARTS STMT 9/30/2016 149.42
52091 10/13/2016 Printed 19387(2) SIERRA FOOTHILLS LITTLE SFLL FIELD RESERVATION - 100.00

LEAGUE
52092 10/13/2016 Printed 19695 STATE WATER RESOURCES SRF FINANCING AGREEMENT 438,973.80

CONTROL
52093 10/13/2016 Printed 21041 UGALDE, AMY MILEAGE REIMBURSMENT 18.40
52094 10/13/2016 Printed 22106 VAN GRONINGEN & FINANCIALCONSULTANT 8,981.25

ASSOCIATES
52095 10/13/2016 Printed 23169 WAVE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS CORP YARD 54.90
52096 10/13/2016 Printed 23301 WESTERN PLACER WASTE SEPT 2016 SLUDGE REMOVAL 282.48
52097 1 0/1 9/201 6 Printed 02829 BLUE RiBBON PERSONNEL ACCT & PW TEMPS 1,452.80

SERVICES
52098 10/19/2016 Printed 03482 CLEAR PATH LAND ANNUAL DAM SURVEY REPORT 1,150.00

EVOLVEMENT,
52099 10/19/2016 Printed 04234 DE LAGE LANDEN FINANCIAL OCT 2016 COPY MACHINE 469.43
52100 10/19/2016 Printed 04400 DIAMOND WELL DRILLING AUG 2016 MONITORING 3,273.00

CO.
52101 10/19/2016 Printed 07460 GOLD COUNTRY MEDIA AD ORDINANCE #530 384.80
52102 10/19/2016 Printed 08050 HACH COMPANY WWTP LAB SUPPLIES 506.91
52103 10/19/2016 Printed 14321 NICKS CUSTOM GOLF CARS 2017 CLUB CAR CARRYALL 500 E 12,558.64
52104 10/19/2016 Printed 16165 PLACER COUNTY LANDFILL CLOSURE TESTING 801.00

ENVIRONMENTAL
52105 10/19/2016 Printed 16727 PONTICELLO ENTERPRISES SEPT2016 ENGINEERING 3,952.50

SERVICES
52106 10/19/2016 Printed 18194 RGS - REGIONAL GOV SEPT 2016 PLANNING SERVICES 2,612.50

SERVICES
52107 10/19/2016 Printed 19059 SCHEMPF, JOHN TRAVEL EXPENSES 860.96
52108 10/19/2016 Printed 19397 SIERRASAW TRIMMER GUARD! 67.40
52109 10/19/2016 Printed 21560 US BANK CORPORATE PMT CREDIT CARD PURCHASES 2,992.98

SYSTEM
52110 10/19/2016 Printed 21500 USABLUE BOOK, INC WWTP LAB SUPPLIES & 406.23
52111 10/19/2016 Printed 23169 WAVE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS CITY HALL INTERNET 105.00

ITEM 3B
7 of 12



Check Register Report

Checks Processed October 2016

BANK: US BANK

Status Void/Stop Vendor Vendor NameDate Number

Total Checks: 47

Total Payments: 47

Total Payments: 47

CITY OF COLFAX

Check Check
Number Date

Date:

Time:

Page:

11/04/2016

10:20 am
2

Check Description

Checks Total (excluding void checks):

Bank Total (excluding void checks):

Grand Total (excluding void checks):

Amount

522,197.44

522,7 97.44

522,7 97.44

ITEM 3B
8 of 12



DAILY CASH SUMMARY REPORT

City of Colfax

10/01/2016- 10/31/2016

Page: 1
1 1/7/20 16

9:53 am

Debit Credit Net Cling

Fund: 100 - General Fund

10/15/2016 DailyTotals 12,525.83 100.00 12,425.83

10/18/2016 DailyTotals 2,925.09 171.73 2,753.36

10/19/2016 DailyTotals 9,197.74 0.t)0 9197.74

10/27/2016 DailyTotals 71,054.60 0.00 71,054.60

Fund: 100 - General Fund ToTALS: 95,703.26 271.73 95,431.53

Fund: 210 - Mitigation Fees - Roads

10/18/2016 DailyTotals 73.17 t).00 73.17

Fund: 210 - Mitigation Fees - Roads TOTALS: 73.17 0.00 73.17

Fund: 211 - Mitigation Fees - Drainage

10/18/2t)16 DailyTotals 4.35 0.00 4.35

Fund: 211 - Mitigation Fees - Drainage TOTALS: 4.35 0.00 4.35

Fund: 212 - Mitigation Fees - Trails

10/18/2016 DailyTotals 6t).85 0.t)0 60.85

Fund: 212 - Mitigation Fees - Trails TOTALS: 60.85 0.00 60.85

Fund: 213 - Mitigation Fees - Parks/Rec

1t)/18/2016 DailyTotals 139.34 0.00 139.34

Fund: 213 - Mitigation Fees - Parks/Rec TOTALS: 139.34 0.00 139.34

Fund: 214 - Mitigation Fees - City Bldgs

10/18/2016 DailyTotals 1.35 0.00 1.35

Fund: 214 - Mitigation Fees - City Bldgs TOTALS: 1.35 0.00 1.35

Fund: 215 - Mitigation Fees - Vehicles

10/18/2016 DailyTotals 6.40 0.00 6.4t)

Fund: 215 - Mitigation Fees - Vehicles TOTALS: 6.40 0.00 6.40

Fund: 217 - Mitigation Fees - DT Parking

10/18/2016 DailyTotals 37.93 0.00 37.93

Limited to include: JE Types of: CR

ITEM 3B
9 of 12



Page: 2
11/7/20 16

9:53 am

Net Chng

City of Colfax

DAILY CASH SUMMARY REPORT

10/01/2016- 10/31/2016

Debit Credit

Fund: 217 - Mitigation Fees - DT Parking TOTALS: 37.93 0.00 37.93

Fund: 218 - Support Law Enforcement

10/19/2016 I)ailyTotals 40307.15 0.00 40,307.15

Fund: 218 - Support Law Enforcement TOTALS: 40,307.15 0.00 40,307.15

Fund: 241 - CDBG Housing Rehabiliation

10/18/2t)16 DailyTotals 134.29 0.00 134.29

Fund: 241 - CDBG Housing Rehabiliation TOTALS: 134.29 0.00 134.29

Fund: 244 - CDBG MicroEnterprise Lending

1t)/1812016 DailyTotals 163.08 0.00 163.08

Fund: 244 - CDBG MicroEnterprise Lending TOTALS: 163.08 0.00 163.08

Fund: 250 - Streets - Roads/Transportation

10/18/2016 DailyTotals 0.00 42.26 -42.26

Fund: 250 - Streets - Roads/Transportation TOTALS: 0.00 42.26 -42.26

Fund: 253 - Gas Taxes

10/18/2016 L)ailyTotals 13.36 0.00 13.36

Fund: 253 - Gas Taxes TOTALS: 13.36 0.00 13.36

Fund: 270 - Beverage Container Recycling

10/18/2016 DailyTotals 46.91 0.00 46.91

Fund: 270 - Beverage Container Recycling TOTALS: 46.91 0.00 46.91

Fund: 280 - Oil Recycling

10/18/2016 DailyTotals 5.86 0.00 5.86

Fund: 280 - Oil Recycling TOTALS: 5.86 0.00 5.86

Fund: 286 - Community Projects

10/18/2016 DailyTotals 7.51 0.00 7.51

Fund: 286 - Community Projects TOTALS: 7.51 0.00 7.51

Limited to include: JE Types of: CR

ITEM 3B
10 of 12



Page: 3
1 1/7/20 16

9:53 am

Net Chng

City of Colfax

DAILY CASH SUMMARY REPORT

10/t)1/2016 - 10/31/2016

Debit Credit

Fund: 292 - Fire Department Capital Funds

10/18/2016 DailyTotals 200.66 0.00 200.66

10/27/2016 DailyTotals 2,262.19 0.00 2,262.19

Fund: 292 - Fire Department Capital Funds TOTALS: 2,462.85 0.00 2,462.85

Fund: 342 - Fire Construction - Mitigation

10/18/2016 DailyTotals 3.46 0.0t) 3.46

Fund: 342 - Fire Construction - Mitigation TOTALS: 3.46 0.00 3.46

Fund: 343 - Recreation Construction

10/18/2016 DailyTotals 3.46 0.00 3.46

Fund: 343 - Recreation Construction TOTALS: 3.46 0.00 3.46

Fund: 350 - Street Improvement Projects

10/18/2016 Daily Totals 34.23 0.00 34.23

Fund: 350 - Street Improvement Projects TOTALS: 34.23 0.00 34.23

Fund: 370 - North Main Street Bike Route

10/18/2016 I)ailyTotals 0.00 42.30 -42.30

Fund: 370 - North Main Street Bike Route TOTALS: 0.00 42.30 -42.30

Fund: 375 - East Oak Street Sidewalk Imp

l0/18/2t)16 DailyTotals t).00 32.34 -32.34

Fund: 375 - East Oak Street Sidewalk Imp TOTALS: 0.00 32.34 -32.34

Fund: 560 - Sewer

10/15/2016

10/18/2016

10/19/2016

10/27/2016

Daily Totals 244.33 t).00 244.33

Daily Totals 2,544. 1 2 0.00 2,544.12

Daily Totals 21 , 134.86 0.00 21 .134.86

DailyTotals 316.80 0.00 316.80

Fund: 560 - Sewer TOTALS: 24,240.11 0.00 24,240.11

Fund: 561 - Sewer Liftstations

10/15/2016 DailyTotals 956.00 0.00 956.00

Limited to include: JE Types of: CR

ITEM 3B
11 of 12



City of Colfax

10/18/2016 Daily Totals

Fund: 561 - Sewer Liftstations

Fund: 565 - General Obligation Bond 197$

10/19/2016 Daily Totals

Fund: 565 - General Obligation Bond 197$

Fund: 570 - Garbage Fund

10/19/2016

Fund: 570 - Garbage Fund

Fund: 572 - Landfill Post Closure Mainten

10/19/2016 Daily Totals

Fund: 572 - Landfill Post Closure Mainten

DAILY CASH SUMMARY REPORT

10/01/2016- 10/31/2016

GRAND TOTALS: 196,196.46 3$$.63 195,807.$3

Debit

407.00

TOTALS: 1,363.00

Page: 4
1 1/7/20 16

9:53 am

Net Cling

407.t)0

1,363.00

Credit

0.00

0.00

115.22 0.00 115.22

TOTALS: 115.22 0.00 115.22

Daily Totals 1 1 ,6 1 2.41 0.00 11,612.41

TOTALS: 11,612.41 0.00 11,612.41

ToTALS:

19,656.91 0.00 19,656.91

19,656.91 0.00 19,656.91

Limited to include: JE Types of: CR

ITEM 3B
12 of 12



1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOR THE DECEMBER 14, 2016 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: John Schempf, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Amy Feagans, Planning Director 

DATE: December 7, 2016 

SUBJECT: Sierra Oaks Estates Vesting Subdivision Map and Village Oaks Apartments Design 
Review 

 

X N/A     FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 48-2016: Adopting the Mitigated Negative Declaration, 
Approving a Lot Line Adjustment, Approving  the Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for the Sierra Oaks 
Estates, Approving the Design Review for the Village Oaks Apartments, and approving a Sign Permit for 
Entry Signage. 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE: This hearing has been noticed in accordance with the requirements of 

California Planning and Zoning Law, Title 7, Chapter 65000, Government 
Code, as amended. 

 
 
PROJECT SUMMARY: 
Project Title:   Sierra Oaks Estates and Village Oaks Apartments   
Applicant/Owner:  Eric R. Stauss/Pinetop Properties, LLC 
Project Location:       Iowa Hill Road & Grandview Way, Colfax, CA 
Land Use (existing):   Vacant 
Surrounding Land Uses 
North: Pinetop Apartments  
South: Large lot single-family residential (Placer County) 
East: Large lot single-family residential (Placer County) 
West: Commercial (Hills Flat Lumber) 
Assessor’s Parcel No:  101-170-013  
Zoning District:  R-1-10 (single family) and R-1-M (multifamily)  
GP Designation:  Medium Density Residential 

ITEM 6A
1 of 122



2 

 

SURROUNDING LAND USES AND SETTING:   
The 34.7-acre vacant site is located on the corner of Iowa Hill Road and Grandview Way in Colfax.  The 
property is bordered by residential apartments to the northwest, commercial uses to the west/southwest, 
and residential uses to the north, east and south.  The subject parcel is bordered by Placer County property 
on all sides except the western boundary, which is in the City of Colfax.  The frontage road to the North 
(Iowa Hill Road) is a county-owned public road.  The frontage road to the East (Grandview Way) is a private 
road located in the County.  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
The proposed project includes a Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map to create 39 lots with 34 of these lots to 
be for the proposed single family residential subdivision, and the remaining five lots part of the multifamily 
development. The proposal also includes Design Review approval for nineteen 4-unit apartment buildings 
(for a total of 76 multifamily units) and a lot line adjustment to revise the property line between existing 
parcels 2 and 4. Finally, the project includes a sign permit request for Entry Signage approval.   
 
As outlined by the property owner/developer in the application, the single family portion of the project “is 
planned to be a unique single-family neighborhood targeting, but not restricted to, empty nesters with the 
focus on foothill living in a minimal development footprint. Covenants, conditions and restrictions (CC&Rs) 
enforced by a homeowner’s association would address community operations, architectural controls and 
standards, and front and rear yard maintenance. The neighborhood would have private roads and a gated 
entry.”   
 
The multifamily portion of the project will include “five lots containing 76 one-, two-, and three-bedroom 
units in 19 two-story 4-plex buildings. A separate building for the manager’s office with mailboxes, common 
meeting and recreation space, restrooms, and an outdoor play area, with architecture designed to 
complement the wooded setting of the site. One hundred sixty-one (161) uncovered parking spaces are 
included, and a mutually beneficial EVA easement would be provided through the existing Pinetop 
Apartments. The community proposes a density of approximately 5.8 units per acre, and would include a 
walking trail system that meanders through the trees and open space of Parcel 4.” 
 
PROJECT ANALYSIS: 
General Plan/Zoning Consistency 
 
The General Plan designation for the subject property is Medium Density residential with density range of 
4.1 – 10 dwelling units per acre.  The Project, with a total of 110 units on 34.7 acres is consistent with the 
General Plan Land Use designation for the property.   
 
The property currently has two different zoning designations:  

 R-1-10, which is single family residential/low density (2.25 du/acre), 10,000 square foot 
minimum lot size; and 

 RM-1, which is multi-family residential/medium density (7 du/acre). 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 6A
2 of 122



3 

 

Project Review by Outside Agencies 
 
The proposed map, site plan, and project description were submitted to interested/affected outside 
agencies for informal consultation.  Comments from agencies have either been addressed through the 
Project design or have been included in the proposed Conditions of Approval. Comments received include 
the following: 
 

 The Placer County Water Agency (PCWA) submitted comments regarding the requirements needed 
in order for PCWA to serve future development of the parcels with water; 

 The Placer County Department of Public Works – Transportation Division submitted comments 
stating “No Impacts were identified” and identified the required design plans for improving access  
to Iowa Hill Road 

 Cal Fire – commented on the proposed EVA access points 

 Recology – submitted comments regarding garbage receptacle placement for the single family 
development 

 Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board 

 Placer County Flood Control – commented on the availability of the Stormwater Management 
Manual available to the project applicant 

 United Auburn Indian Community – indicated they would like to receive a copy of the Cultural 
Resources report. This was provided and no further comment was received. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS: 
An Initial Study was prepared to determine whether the project may have a significant adverse effect on 
the environment.  Special studies were prepared for traffic, air quality and greenhouse gas, noise, and 
geotechnical potential impacts.  On the basis of this Initial Study, staff concluded that the proposed project, 
as conditioned and with mitigation measures, will not have a significant adverse effect on the environment, 
and will not require the preparation of an Environmental Impact Report.  Therefore, in accordance with 
CEQA requirements, a Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared (Attachment 3). The required 
mitigation measures have been incorporated into the conditions of approval for the project. 
 
The proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration was circulated for public review for a period of at least 20 
days (November 17 to December 14, 2016).  No comments were received during the initial 20-day review 
period (from November 17 to December 7, 2016).  The Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration are 
attached to the report (Attachment 3) but due to the large size and number of pages, the complete 
document with appendices and special studies is available on the City’s website at www.colfax-ca.gov. 
 
The site will be graded to create the road system and building pads for the structures. Tree removal will be 
necessary and the proposed landscaping plan provides significant tree replacement to mitigate the tree 
loss. A condition of approval has been included requiring compliance with the City’s Tree Preservation 
Guidelines. (condition no. 8) 
 
REQUESTED ENTITLEMENTS: 
The following entitlements are requested as part of this application: 

 Lot Line Adjustment 

 Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map 

 Site Design Review 

 Sign Review 

ITEM 6A
3 of 122



4 

 

 
Lot Line Adjustment 
 
As noted above, the project request includes a lot line adjustment to realign the parcel lines that were 
created with approval the four-lot parcel map that was recorded in May of this year.  The revised property 
lines allow for better street alignment and building sites for the single family development. 
 
Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map 
 
As proposed, the Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map (VTSM) creates 34 single family lots and five 
multifamily lots.  The single-family lots range in size from 10,119 square feet (Lot no. 3) to 70,441 square 
feet (Lot no. 31). The five multifamily lots range in size from 12,502 square feet for the smallest lot and 
224,884 square feet for the largest lot. The map also includes two existing parcels that are not a part of the 
proposed subdivision. These lots are designated as Parcel 1 and Parcel 3 on the map exhibits. (Refer to 
Attachments 5a-h)  
 
Approval of a “vesting” tentative map would confer a vested right for the owner to proceed with 
development in substantial compliance with the ordinances, policies and standards in effect as of the date 
of approval, as described in Government Code Section 66474.2.  These rights would expire one year after 
the recording date of the final map-parcel map.    
 
Although the entire perimeter of the single-family project would be fenced, individual lots will not have 
fences, and the property lines between houses will not be emphasized. The CC&Rs recorded for the project 
will ensure protection of the existing woodlands, all landscaping, the trail system and a fuel management 
zone in the rear yards. The neighborhood would include a pedestrian trail system, which will meander 
through the trees and open spaces of the single family development (refer to Attachment 5f). The homes 
are proposed to range between 1,900 and 2,400 square feet, offering one and two story floor plans with 
the primary living zones on the street level. The streets would be private and 20-feet wide to maintain the 
rural character of the setting, with parking only allowed in driveways and the 43 off-street spaces provided 
in key locations along the roadways. The roadways and parking have been be designed to take advantage 
of the rolling topography and preserve the views. An Emergency Vehicle Access (EVA) easement is 
proposed at the south boundary of the proposed neighborhood connecting to Hill Haven Drive.  
 
As proposed, the 34 single-family residences will provide the following mix of housing sizes and floor plans: 

 Twenty homes with three-bedrooms and two-and-a-half bathrooms (approximately 
2,500 square feet 

 Nine homes with three-bedrooms and two-and-a-half bathrooms (approximately 
1,982 square feet) 

 Five homes with three-bedrooms and two-and-a-half bathrooms (approximately 
2,283 square feet) 

 
The proposed subdivision map and project description have been reviewed by City staff and outside 
agencies, and conditions have been incorporated into this report for approval.     
 
 
 
 

ITEM 6A
4 of 122



5 

 

Site Design Review – Multifamily Project 
 
The Village Oaks multifamily residential community as proposed includes five lots containing 76 units in 19 
two-story 4-plex buildings, and a separate building containing the manager’s office with mailboxes, 
common meeting and recreation space, restrooms, and an outdoor play area, with architecture designed to 
complement the wooded setting. A mutually beneficial EVA easement will be provide emergency access 
through the existing Pinetop Apartments. The community proposes a density of approximately 5.8 units per 
acre, and would include a walking trail system that meanders through the trees and open space of Parcel 4. 
The roadway and parking is designed to take advantage of the rolling topography and preserve the views.  
 
Village Oaks Apartments includes 19, two-story buildings with the following floor plans: 
 

 Fifteen buildings (4,144 square feet each), each with four, two-bedroom, two bathroom  
units (1,036 square feet) 

 Four buildings (3,900 square feet each), each with two, three-bedroom, two bathroom  
units (1,248 square feet) and two, one-bedroom, one bathroom units (702 
square feet). 

 
The 19 apartment buildings are designed to reflect the natural terrain and landscape of the Colfax area with 
a combination of stucco siding and corrugated metal roofing. Building colors will be muted earth tones as 
indicated on the colors and materials sheet (Attachment 7f). The buildings are designed with low sloping 
roofs and oriented on the site to take advantage of roof mounted solar panels should the developer decide 
to install the panels at a future date.  
 
The zoning ordinance requires 156 parking spaces per unit for the proposed mix of one, two and three 
bedroom units and the site plan indicates that 161 spaces will be provided satisfying the requirement. The 
project will also have a small tot lot/play area adjacent to the community center/manager’s office building. 
 
Entry Signage and Gate 
 
Entry monument signage and a gate are included as part of the Design Review package. The monument 
sign continues the natural design look with bundled Oak posts to support the 5’ x 8’ sign. The sign will 
identify both the single-family development – Sierra Oaks Estates and the multifamily project – Village Oaks 
Apartments (Refer to Attachment 8). Staff supports the design as submitted as it is in compliance with the 
City’s sign ordinance requirements and it complements the overall project design theme. 
 
Two entry gates are proposed; one at the entry into Village Oaks Apartments and one into the single-family 
development. The gates will be wrought iron and anchored with the same bundled Oak supports to match 
the entry sign. Both gates will be electronically operated with key pad access and Fire and Sheriff will have 
immediate access as necessary. The developer has also indicated that he is proposing to leave the gates 
open during daylight hours. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 6A
5 of 122



6 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff recommends the City Council adopt the attached Resolution to:  1- Adopt the Mitigated Negative 
Declaration, 2- Approve the Lot Line Adjustment, 3 – Approve the Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map 
creating 34 single family lots and four multi-family lots, 4 – Approve the Design Review of 76 apartment 
units and 5- Approve the monument entry signage and entry gates for the project. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution 48-2016 
2. Conditions of Approval 
3. Initial Study, Mitigated Negative Declaration (without appendices) 
4. Vicinity Map 
5. Single Family Subdivision Preliminary Design Plans 

a. Cover Page 
b. Preliminary Site Plan 
c. Existing site plan/parcel map 
d. Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map 
e. Tree Removal Plan 
f. Preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan 
g. Preliminary Water and Sewer Plan 
h. Sections and Details 

6. Preliminary Landscape Plans 
7. Multifamily Project Design Plans 

a. Accessible building – 2bedroom/2 bath floor plans 
b. Building Elevations 
c. 3 bedroom/2 bath and 1 bedroom/1 bath floor plans 
d. Building Elevations  
e. Community Center / Manager’s Office floor plan and elevation 
f. Materials/Color sheet 

8. Entry gate / monument signage 
9. Public Comment Letters 

a. The Placer County Water Agency (PCWA)  
b. The Placer County Department of Public Works  
c. Cal Fire   
d. Recology  
e. Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board 
f. Placer County Flood Control  
g. United Auburn Indian Community  

 

 
 

ITEM 6A
6 of 122



Resolution 48-2016 1  

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 48-2016 
 

ADOPTING A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION, APPROVING A LOT 
LINE ADJUSTMENT, APPROVING THE VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION 
MAP FOR THE SIERRA OAKS ESTATES, APPROVING THE DESIGN REVIEW 
FOR THE VILLAGE OAKS APARTMENTS, AND APPROVING A SIGN PERMIT 

FOR ENTRY SIGNAGE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the property owner/applicant, Eric Stauss, has submitted an application 
for a Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map, a Lot Line Adjustment, a Design Review Permit 
and a Sign Permit; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Notice of the meeting has been given at the time and in the manner 
required by State Law and City Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared for the Sierra Oaks 
Estates and Village Oaks Apartment project in accordance with CEQA requirements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mitigated Negative Declaration has determined that the proposed 
project would not have a significant effect on the environment with the required mitigation 
measures; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the project as proposed is consistent with the City’s General Plan, 
Zoning and the Colfax Municipal Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed Vesting Tentative Subdivision map with the conditions of 
approval is consistent with the City’s Subdivision Ordinance and the Subdivision Map Act; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed project complies with the intent and purpose of the 
development standards of the City for Design Review and Sign Review approval.. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 6A
7 of 122



Resolution 48-2016 2  

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Colfax does 
hereby Adopt the Mitigated Negative Declaration, Approve the Lot Line Adjustment, 
Approve the Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for the Sierra Oaks Estates, Approve the 
Design Review for the Village Oaks Apartments, and approving the Sign Permit For Entry 
Signage. 
 
 THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at a 
regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 14th day of  
December 2016 by the following roll call vote of the Council: 
 
Ayes:    
Noes:    
Absent:   
Abstain:   

 
 
 ___________________________________ 

      Tom Parnham, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM 6A
8 of 122



1 
 

Sierra Oaks Estates and Village Oaks Apartments 
VESTING TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP 

DESIGN REVIEW 
TSM-DR-16-01 

PLANNING 
 

1. The applicant shall submit final site development plans to the City that substantially 
conform to the exhibits referenced in the staff report dated 12-14-16. 
 

2. The owner/applicant shall consult with the Sheriff’s Department to incorporate all 
practical and reasonable crime prevention measures. The following security/safety 
measures shall be considered: 

a. A security guard on-duty at all times at the site or a six-foot security fence shall 
be constructed around the perimeter of the construction areas. 

b. Security measures for the safety of all construction equipment and unit 
appliances. 

c. Landscaping shall not cover exterior doors or windows, block line-of-site at 
intersections or screen overhead lighting. 

 
3. Prior to grading and/or construction, a Traffic Control Plan for Iowa Hill Road at the project entry 

shall be prepared. The traffic control plan shall be re viewed and approved by the city prior to 
grading and/or construction. The Traffic Control Plan shall designate haul routes and comply 
with requirements in the encroachment permits issued by Placer County Public Works. The 
Traffic Control Plan prepared by the project construction contractor(s) shall, at minimum, 
include the following measures: Maintaining the maximum amount of travel lane capacity 
during non-construction periods, possible, and advanced notice to drivers through the provision 
of construction signage. Maintaining alternate one-way traffic flow past the laydown area and 
site access when feasible. 

 
4. Construction equipment noise shall be minimized during project construction by muffling and 

shielding intakes and exhaust on construction equipment (per the manufacturer's specifications) 
and by shrouding or shielding impact tools, where used. The City's construction specifications 
shall also require that the contractor select staging areas as far as feasibly possible from 
sensitive receptors. 

 
5. Construction contractors shall locate fixed construction equipment (such as compressors and 

generators) and construction staging areas as far as possible from nearby residences. If feasible, 
noise barriers shall be used at the construction site and staging area. Temporary walls, 
stockpiles of excavated materials, or moveable sound barrier curtains would be appropriate in 
instances where construction noise would exceed 90 dBA and occur within less than 50 feet 
from a sensitive receptor. The final selection of noise barriers will be subject to the City's 
approval and shall provide a minimum 10 dBA reduction in construction noise levels. 

 
6. No amplified sources(e.g., stereo "boom boxes") shall be used in the vicinity of residences 

during project construction. 
 

ITEM 6A
9 of 122



2 
 

7. Prior to the commencement of grading and/or construction activities, the owner/applicant shall 
submit an erosion control plan to the City for review and approval. The plan shall identify 
protective measures to be taken during excavation, temporary stockpiling, any reuse or 
disposal, and revegetation. These measures shall conform to geotechnical reports, the City of 
Colfax requirements and the County of Placer Erosion and Sedimentation Control Standards and 
Specifications. 
 

8. The owner/applicant shall comply with the Tree Preservation Guidelines (Colfax Municipal Code 
section 17.110) to the satisfaction of the Planning Director.  
 

9. The owner/applicant shall be required to participate in a Mitigation Monitoring Program 
(MMP) pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21081.6 and as outlined in condition 
no.s 10 - 25.  

 
Mitigation Monitoring Program 

10. A thorough site-walk of the project site shall be conducted to determine the presence or 
absence of the coast horned lizard and the following special-status plants during the appropriate 
bloom season: Sierra bluegrass (blooms April – June), western viburnum (blooms May – July), 
and Stebbin’s phacelia (blooms May – July). The site-walk shall be conducted by a qualified 
biologist prior to any clearing or site work. (MM BIO-1) 

 
11. If any tree removal or adjacent construction activity takes place during the associated 

breeding/nesting season for raptors (typically February through August), preconstruction 
surveys shall be conducted by a qualified biologist no more than 15 days prior to initiation of 
proposed development activities. If active nests are found on or immediately adjacent to the 
site, CDFW shall be contacted to determine appropriate avoidance measures. If no nesting is 
found to occur, necessary tree removal could then proceed. This survey shall not be necessary if 
tree removal and vegetation clearing occur outside of the nesting period. (MM Bio-2) 

 
12. If archaeological or paleontological resources are discovered during ground disturbing activities 

for the proposed project, work shall be halted in that area within 50 feet of the find and a 
qualified paleontologist shall be notified immediately to evaluate the find. (MM CUL-1) 

 
13. If human remains are discovered during ground disturbing activities for the proposed project, 

work shall be halted and the County Coroner shall be notified of the find immediately. No 
further work shall occur until the County Coroner has made a determination of origin and 
disposition pursuant to PRC Section 5097.98. If the human remains are determined to be of 
Native American origin, the County Coroner shall notify the NAHC, which will determine and 
notify the a Most Likely Descendent (MLD). The MLD shall complete the inspection of the site 
within 48 hours of notification and may recommend scientific removal and nondestructive 
analysis of human remains and items associated with Native American burials. (MM CUL-2) 

 
14. The applicant of the proposed project shall be responsible for preparing an Erosion and 

Sediment Control Plan prior to any construction activities. (MM GEO-1) 
 

15. Grading shall not be performed during the rainy season, between October 15 and April 15. (MM 
GEO-2) 

ITEM 6A
10 of 122



3 
 

 
16. A revegetation plan shall be prepared by a licensed landscape architect to be submitted with the 

improvement plans for approval. The plan shall address all disturbed areas on the site, 
revegetation materials, methodology, schedule, proposed irrigation systems for open space 
areas, and the landscaping along Iowa Hill Road. All cut and fill areas shall be revegetated as 
soon as possible following grading activities, using native seed mixed and compatible plantings. 
(MM GEO-3) 

 
17. Fill within two feet of finished grade in building areas supporting conventional foundations shall 

consist of relatively low expansive soil, defined as having an Expansion Index less than 50. 
Expansive soil shall not be placed in the upper two feet of building pads. Potentially expansive 
soil shall be blended with soil that is more granular or weathered rock to create relatively low 
expansive conditions. (MM GEO-4) 

 
18. The proposed project shall implement the following measures to reduce operational GHG 

emissions:  (MM GHG-1) 
 

a. Install a photovoltaic system within the multi-family community; resulting in at least an 
approximately 40 percent reduction in electrical GHG emissions for the apartment 
community portion of the project.  
 

b. If item “a” above is deemed unfeasible, the owner/applicant may, prior to occupancy, 
purchase 10 metric tons of CO2e offset credits from an ARB or PCAPCD approved 
registry. The applicant shall purchase the 10 metric tons of CO2e offset credits annually 
for a maximum of 20 years or until the year in which the project’s emissions will be 
below the PCAPCD GHG significance threshold of 5.5 metric tons per service population 
per year. The applicant may elect to purchase all of the required credits prior to project 
occupancy, a one-time purchase of 200 metric tons of CO2e offset credits (10 metric 
tons of CO2e x 20 years). The applicable fee per ton varies by registry and charges over 
time, therefore the actual amount to be paid per metric ton shall be the rate in effect at 
the selected registry at the time of purchase. 

 
c. Only energy efficient appliances shall be installed, including Energy Star refrigerators, 

clothes washers, dishwashers, and ceiling fans. 
 

d. Only low-flow bathroom and kitchen faucets, toilets, and showers shall be installed. 
 

e. All public street, area, and residential lighting (including all rooms in residences) 
installed on the site shall be considered high efficiency lighting. 

 
f. All landscaping equipment (lawnmower, leaf blower, and chainsaw) shall be electric. 

 
19. The applicant shall submit a final Drainage Study with the proposed project improvement plans. 

The final Drainage Study shall meet the requirements for submittals contained in the Placer 
County Flood Control and Water Conservation District’s Stormwater Management Manual. (MM 
HYD-1) 

 

ITEM 6A
11 of 122



4 
 

20. Drainage facilities shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the Placer County Flood 
Control and Water Conservation District’s Stormwater Management Manual, latest edition, 
Placer County Land Development Manual, latest edition, and the City’s requirements. 
Improvement plans shall be submitted to the Flood Control District for review and approval of 
the drainage facilities. (MM HYD-2) 

 
21. Detention basins and the drainage system shall be designed to maintain runoff from the site at 

pre-development rates. The final Drainage Study shall include a detailed analysis of the ability of 
the detention basins to attenuate flood flows (pre- and post-development hydrograph 
comparison) and a discussion of the significance of the proposed reduction of flood flows offsite 
of the proposed site using the 2-, 10- and 25-year flows. (MM HYD-3) 

 
22. The stormwater drainage collection system shall be designed to intercept runoff at all 

intersections, and at intermediate locations as required so that gutter flow does not exceed a 
run of four hundred feet before reaching a drain inlet. The total length of run tributary to a drain 
inlet from each direction shall not exceed six hundred feet.  (MM HYD -4) 

 
23. The minimum allowable pipe diameter for the storm drainage system shall be 12 inches. (MM 

HYD-5) 
 

24. The applicant of the proposed project shall contribute its fair share to needed road 
improvements by paying City adopted fees. (MM TRA-1) 

 
25. The applicant of the proposed project shall be responsible for constructing the following 

improvements: (MM TRA-2) 
 

 Install Placer County Plate R-17 improvements including acceleration and deceleration 
tapers on Iowa Hill Road at the project site access. 

 

PUBLIC WORKS/ENGINEERING  
 

26. The applicant shall be responsible for all City map check, plan check and inspection 
costs. The Applicant shall establish a Developer Deposit Account with the City upon the 
initiation of plan check services. The amount of the initial deposit shall be determined 
by the City Engineer. Additional funds may be required based upon actual plan check 
and inspection costs. 

 
27. All improvements shall be designed in accordance with the City of Colfax Municipal 

Code, and applicable City, County and Placer County Water Agency (PCWA) public works 
standards (Public Works Standards), except as specifically noted otherwise in these 
conditions. Approvals depicting improvements that do not conform to the City’s 
Municipal Code or the Public Works Standards do not constitute approval of an 
exceptions this requirement unless explicitly authorized herein or in another City 
resolution. 

 

ITEM 6A
12 of 122



5 
 

28. All existing and proposed new utilities to serve the project, both on-site and along 
project frontages, shall be placed underground. Exceptions may be allowed for surface 
mounted transformers, pedestal mounted terminal boxes and meter cabinets. 

 
29. Unless otherwise explicitly permitted, all existing wells, septic tanks and/or 

underground fuel storage tanks shall be abandoned under permit and inspection of 
Placer County Department of Environmental Health or other designated agency. If there 
are none, the project engineer shall provide a letter documenting and describing the 
scope of the search done to make this determination. 

 
30. A detailed Soils Investigation/Geotechnical Report shall be prepared and submitted for 

review. The report shall address, at a minimum, potential geologic hazards in the area, 
potential historic mine shafts and vents, possible presence of asbestos-bearing rock, R-
values, expansive soils and seismic risk. The improvement plans shall incorporate all 
design and construction criteria recommended in the Geotechnical Report. 
 

31. Dust control specifications shall be included on the improvement plans to minimize dust 
nuisance during construction. Dust control measures shall be developed to take into 
account the possible presence of asbestos bearing rock formations and the measures 
necessary to deal with this type of dust. 
 

32. The applicant shall re-vegetate cut and fill areas as soon as possible using native seed 
mixes and compatible plantings as specified by the City Engineer and the Soil 
Conservation Service. 
 

33. The applicant shall conduct all soil stabilization activities pursuant to City Engineering 
Department and Soil Conservation Service practices and techniques. Stabilization details 
shall be shown on the improvement plans for temporary and permanent conditions. 
 

34. Any retaining walls necessary as a part of the site grading shall be included on the 

grading plan for review and approval of the City Engineer. Any retaining walls in excess 

of 3-ft in exposed height or that may be influenced by adjacent structures (existing or 

future structures) shall have design calculations prepared and submitted to the City 

Engineer and Building Department for review. 

 

35. A drainage report prepared by a California Registered Civil Engineer shall be submitted 
for review with the initial submittal of the Improvement Plans for the entire subdivision.  
The report shall include hydrologic and hydraulic calculations to support the design and 
sizing of all public and private drainage facilities including storm drains, detention 
facilities and weirs. 
 

36. The drainage plans shall include ditches or swales as required by the City Engineer to 
eliminate cross lot drainage to the extent possible. Cross lot drainage is allowed in areas 

ITEM 6A
13 of 122



6 
 

where drainage easements are provided in any recorded CCRs and Maintenance 
Agreements.   
 

37. Storm-water detention shall be provided per the requirements of the final on-site 
project drainage analysis and meet local and State drainage requirements. Design of 
storm water detention facilities shall be subject to City standards and the review and 
approval of the City Engineer. Stormwater plans shall include the following: 

 
a. The velocity of concentrated storm flows from impervious surfaces should be 

reduced by the use of energy dissipaters. These structures should be placed so 
that the velocity reduction occurs before water enters existing erodible areas 
such as wetlands, creeks or ditches. 

 
b. Water pollution control devices shall be placed at the appropriate locations in 

the project's drainage system. The design and placement of the devices should 
be performed by a qualified engineer with demonstrated experience in the 
design of Storm Drainage Best Management Practices. The placement of the 
devices should be such that drainage from large paved areas is intercepted prior 
to discharge to the natural on-site or off-site drainage systems. These systems 
may be eliminated with the adequate use of water quality basins as approved by 
the City Engineer. 

 

c. Any proposed on-site (outside of public right-or-way) storm drainage systems 
shall be private. The maintenance of the on-site system shall be the 
responsibility of the appropriate property owner or a responsible owners’ 
association in accordance with recorded CCRs or Maintenance Agreements. 

 

d. The developer shall be responsible for the acquisition of all storm drain 
easements that are required for the construction and maintenance of any 
perimeter and/or off-site drainage improvements. 

 

e. The perimeter of the development shall be protected against surface runoff from 
adjacent properties in a manner acceptable to the City Engineer. 

 
38. A detailed Post-Construction Stormwater Control Plan (SWCP) that identifies and sizes 

all permanent post-construction stormwater treatment BMPs shall be prepared and 
submitted for review approval. The Plan shall be prepared in accordance with the latest 
requirements of the State Water Resources Control Board Phase II Municipal Separate 
Storm Water System (MS4) General Permit (Order 2013-0001 DWQ). 

 
39. A Post Construction Stormwater Operations and Maintenance Plan that provides a 

color-coded plan sheet showing all storm drain and water quality infrastructure that is 
to be maintained,  along with detailed instructions and schedules for the ongoing 

ITEM 6A
14 of 122



7 
 

maintenance and operation of all post-construction stormwater BMPs shall be 
submitted for review and approval by the City Engineer. Once approved, the property 
owner shall enter into an agreement (recorded with the County Recorder and 
transferrable to future Homeowner’s Association) with the City that provides the terms, 
conditions, and security associated with the ongoing requirements of the Post 
Construction Stormwater Best Management Practices. 
 

40. For the construction phase, the applicant shall comply with Placer County Air Pollution 
Control District regulations. 
  

41. The project applicant shall prepare a Fugitive Dust Control Plan to acknowledge the 
state and local fugitive dust emission laws and approved fugitive dust control measures 
for implementation. The Plan shall be submitted prior to issuance of grading permits. 
 

42. A Final Map, as defined in the Subdivision Map Act, shall be prepared by a licensed 
surveyor or civil engineer for the entire project or for each proposed phase. Final Maps 
shall show all parcels, rights-of-way, and easement(s), and shall be submitted to the City 
Engineer for review. Final Maps shall be in substantial conformance with the approved 
Vesting Tentative Map and all applicable conditions of approval. Final Maps are not valid 
until they have been approved by the City and recorded. Closure calculations shall be 
provided at the time of initial Final Map submittal. All calculated points within the map 
shall be based upon one common set of coordinates. All information shown on the Final 
Map shall be directly verifiable by information shown on the closure calculation 
printout. The point(s) of beginning shall be clearly defined. All lot acreages shall be 
shown on the Final Map and shall be verifiable from information shown on the closure 
calculation printout. A current title report (within past 30 days) shall be submitted at the 
time of initial Final Map submittal. 
 

43. The Applicant shall secure all necessary rights-of-way and public and private easements 
for both onsite and offsite improvements to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. Rights-
of-way shall and easements shall be dedicated on the map or granted by separate 
instrument. The Applicant shall prepare all necessary legal descriptions and deeds. 
 

44. To the extent any offsite public improvements require the acquisition of property not 
currently owned by the Applicant, City or County, the Applicant shall first make a good-
faith effort to acquire the necessary property rights, however if the Applicant makes 
such an effort and is unable to acquire such rights, then the Applicant may request the 
City acquire the necessary property rights through the exercise of eminent domain 
provided that the Applicant enters first into an agreement with the City to pay for all 
costs incurred by the City to acquire such rights and if the City does not acquire the 
rights necessary to allow the offsite public improvements to be completed by the 
Applicant within statutory timeline provided by law, then the Applicant shall be relieved 
of the obligation to construct those off-site improvements only to the extent they 

ITEM 6A
15 of 122



8 
 

require property not currently owned by the Applicant or the City. The Applicant shall 
make a good-faith effort to identify and acquire the necessary property rights at the 
earliest opportunity. 

 
45. The Applicant shall transmit by certified mail a copy of the conditionally approved 

Vesting Tentative Map together with a copy of Section 66436 of the State Subdivision 
Map Act to each public entity or public utility that is an easement holder of record. 
 

46. Applicant shall submit site Improvement Plans, prepared by a registered Civil Engineer, 
for review and approval of the City.  No final grading or other construction shall be 
performed until the Improvement Plans have been approved. The applicant shall not 
begin clearing, grubbing, or rough grading at the site prior to approval of the 
Improvement Plans, unless explicitly approved by the City through the standard grading 
and utilities only permit process. Securities for grading, erosion control, winterization 
operations and site restoration and any necessary inspection fees shall be posted prior 
to permit issuance. 
 

47. If construction includes blasting or the use of controlled explosives, the grading 
contractor and the applicant shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations and 
the conditions provided by the City, which include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 
a. Make all test hole logs available to road and underground contractors. 
b. Require that the blasting contractor be licensed, bonded and insured. 
c. Contractor shall communicate in person and in writing with occupants of all 

neighboring properties to advise them of the estimated schedule for blasting and 
to explain the warning signals. 

d. Insure that the conventional OSHA signals for blasting are followed prior to and 
while firing each shot, with a sufficient air whistle that can be heard for a 
minimum of 2,000 feet. 

e. Set signs indicating a blasting area on nearby streets. Flag persons shall be used. 
f. Cover shallow shots on exposed rock with soil and/or a blasting mat to mitigate 

flying rock. Soil should be free of round boulders or cobbles. 
g. A pre-blast survey of all surrounding structures and facilities shall be prepared 

along with a blasting program including blast peak velocity limits at various 
points for the blasting required to create roads and major utility lines. The 
blasting program and pre-blast survey shall be kept on file with the Police 
Department. Blasting operations shall be coordinated with the Fire Chief. 

h. The contractor must secure a valid blasting permit prior to using explosives. 
 

48. An Encroachment Permit is required for any work within City or County rights-of-way. 
Encroachment Permits will not be issued prior to the approval of the Improvement 
Plans. 

 

ITEM 6A
16 of 122



9 
 

49. All private streets, water mains, sewer mains, and storm drains shall be clearly labeled 
as "Private" on the Improvement Plans, along with clear demarcation points where they 
become public. 

 
50. All public water service laterals or services (domestic water and fire water supply) shall 

include approved backflow prevention devices. 
 

51. The Applicant shall keep adjoining public streets free and clean of project dirt, mud, 
materials, and debris during the construction period, as is found necessary by the City 
Engineer. 
 

52. The developer, at his sole expense, shall repair existing public and private facilities 
damaged during the course of construction to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 
 

53. If any hazardous material is encountered during the construction of this project, all work 
shall be immediately stopped and the Cal Fire, Placer County Department of 
Environmental Health or other designated agency, and the City Inspector shall be 
notified immediately. Work shall not proceed until clearance has been issued by all of 
these agencies. 

 
54. Prior to final preparation of the road subgrade and placement of road base materials, all 

underground utilities shall be installed and service connections terminated (stubbed-
out) to a point at least behind the planned sidewalk or, in the case where no sidewalk is 
planned, a point should be a minimum of 5 feet beyond the edge of the street or road. 
Public utilities, Cable TV, sanitary sewers, and water lines, shall be installed in a manner 
that will not disturb the street pavement, curb, gutter and sidewalk, when future service 
connections or extensions are made.  

 
55. Where soil or geologic conditions encountered in grading operations are different from 

that anticipated in the soil and/or geologic investigation report, or where such 
conditions warrant changes to the recommendations contained in the original soil 
investigation, a revised soil or geologic report shall be submitted for approval by the City 
Engineer. Additionally, if field conditions warrant installation of any subdrains, the 
location, size and construction details must be provided to the City for review and 
approval prior to construction and documented on as-built plans. 

 
56. All new fire hydrants shall be securely covered with burlaps sacks or heavy duty plastic 

until the hydrants have been tested and found to be in conformance with City flow 
requirements. No storage of combustible materials or construction of building shall be 
permitted until all hydrants meet City flow requirements. 

 
57. Prior to placing the final lift of asphalt, all public/private storm drain and sanitary sewer 

lines shall be video inspected at the Applicant's expense. All video tapes shall be 

ITEM 6A
17 of 122



10 
 

submitted to the City Engineer for review. If any inadequacies are found, they shall be 
repaired prior to the placement of the final lift of asphalt.  
 

58. All streets, curbs, gutters, sidewalks or other public facilities damaged in the course of 
construction associated with this Project shall be the responsibility of the Applicant and 
shall be repaired to the satisfaction of the City Engineer at the Applicant's expense. 

 
59. After all of the new underground utilities within existing public streets have been 

installed, the affected areas shall be milled and repaved (overlaid) to present a neat 
finished and smooth pavement area. Multiple trench patches are not acceptable. 

 
60. All construction stormwater pollution prevention best management practices (BMP's) 

shall be installed as the first order of work and in accordance with the State Water 
Resources Control Board's General Construction Permit for Stormwater Discharges 
Associated with Construction and Land Disturbance Activities (Order 2009-0009-DWQ) 
and the Applicant's Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP). All stormwater 
BMP's shall be maintained to the satisfaction of the Qualified SWPPP Developer (QSD), 
Qualified SWPPP Practitioner (QSP), and the City Engineer. 

 
61. All construction and grading activities on the site shall be governed by the City’s noise 

ordinance and be limited to between 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. Monday through Friday. 
Work on weekends and holidays requires written approval from the City Engineer. If 
weekends and holiday work is approved, construction and grading activities on the site 
shall be limited to between 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on Saturdays, Sundays as well as 
State and Federal holidays. 
 

62. The applicant shall submit improvement plans prepared by a registered Civil Engineer 

(Engineer of Record) in substantial conformance with the Vesting Tentative Map, 

prepared by RFE Engineering, Inc., dated November 15 2016 (VTM). 

 

63. All on-site (defined as: within the subdivision boundaries) streets, sidewalks, 

streetlights, domestic water facilities, sewers, storm drain facilities and stormwater 

quality facilities shall be privately owned and maintained with the exception of the 

following on-site Public Improvements: 

 Existing and new City-owned sewer main and manholes. 

 PCWA water distribution facilities 

 Any underground power and communication facilities 

 

64. Rough grading shall be performed over the subdivision for future building pads to the 
extent necessary to prevent the need for grading across newly created lot lines. 
 

ITEM 6A
18 of 122



11 
 

65. The Applicant shall construct all of the on-site and off-site Public Improvements 
generally shown on the Vesting Tentative Map and/or more specifically described 
below.   

 
a. Colfax-Iowa Hill Road Improvements: 

 

 Construction of a public sidewalk along the entire subdivision frontage of 
Colfax-Iowa Hill Road. Sidewalk shall be the same width and join the 
existing sidewalk near the northwesterly corner of the subdivision.  

 Widening of Colfax-Iowa Hill Road at the new intersection created for 
the entry for the subdivision to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and 
Placer County. The widening shall provide sufficient distance for the safe 
entry and exit from the subdivision including deceleration, acceleration, 
and pedestrian crossings as well as stopping distance and decision sight 
distance in accordance with the latest edition of the Caltrans Highway 
Design Manual. 

 Provide a sight-distance diagram and calculations at the intersection of 
Colfax-Iowa Hill Road and the subdivision entrance. Sight distance 
diagram shall show the location and size of any vertical obstructions that 
may be obstructing the line of sight of motorists entering or exiting the 
subdivision, including trees, vegetation, road signs, utilities and 
monument signs. 

 Roadway culverts shall be designed and installed to convey roadside 
drainage along Colfax-Iowa Hill Road. Design shall include pipe materials, 
slope, pipe strength calculations, and end treatments to the satisfaction 
of the City Engineer.  

 Pedestrian curb ramps meeting the most recent ADA standards shall be 
provided at all intersections corners adjacent to sidewalks and at the 
limits of the improvements where they do not adjoin existing sidewalk 
improvements.  Sidewalk warps shall be provided as necessary to allow a 
minimum clearance of four-foot wide walkway at all any obstructions 
including areas where mailboxes, streetlights, and fire hydrants. 

 
b. Rehabilitation, Upsizing or Replacement of Sewer Mains in the Project Vicinity: 

Based on an engineering evaluation by the City, the Applicant may be required to 

rehabilitate, upsize or replace existing City owned sewer mains and manholes 

that are within or in the vicinity of the Project. The extent of the sewer 

improvements is to be established within 45 days of tentative map approval. 

Once the extent of sewer improvements are established by the City, the 

Applicant shall enter into a reimbursement agreement defining the scope of the 

improvements, estimated costs and terms of reimbursement for the design and 

construction of said improvements. The applicant will be responsible for 

constructing any sewer improvement and the City shall be responsible for 

ITEM 6A
19 of 122



12 
 

reimbursing the Applicant for any costs associated with said improvements that 

are not the direct result of the subdivision. The City may reimburse the Applicant 

directly, though fee credits or other means acceptable to both parties. 

 

c. Hill Haven Drive Emergency Access: 
A private 20-foot fire road easement for the purpose of providing emergency 

access through the properties between Iowa Hill Road and the existing gate on 

the south  property line of Parcel 2, shall be provided on the Final Parcel Map. 

The location of the fire road easement may be revised subsequent to the 

recording of the Parcel Map and any such change shall be approved in writing by 

an authorized agent of the City of Colfax. 

 

d. Pinetop Homeowners Association Emergency Access: 
Supplemental emergency ingress and egress shall be provided at the 

northwesterly corner of the Village Oaks Subdivision through the adjacent parcel 

(Parcel A, 19 P.M. 105) to Colfax-Iowa Hill Drive. The access shall include a paved 

surface at least 20-feet in width as approved by the City Engineer and Cal Fire. All 

necessary easements to the nearest public street shall be obtained from the 

affected property owner. 

 

e. PCWA Water System Improvements:  
The applicant shall fund the design and construction of water mains and a 
pressure reducing station between Canyon Way and Grand View Way in the 
existing system to the satisfaction of PCWA and the City Engineer.  Water system 
improvement shall be designed to serve the proposed development and the 
surrounding area. 

 
f. Fire Hydrants: 

Fire hydrants shall be installed in the public right-of-way at locations and in a 

manner as approved by Cal Fire. 

 
66. The Applicant shall construct all of the on-site Private Improvements generally shown 

on the Vesting Tentative Map and more specifically described below.  All private streets, 
water, sewer, recycled water, storm drainage and stormwater quality improvements 
shall be designed in accordance with the City standards, except as specifically noted 
otherwise in these conditions. 

 
a. Street Improvements: 

 
The private on-site streets identified on the Vesting Tentative Map as Sierra Oaks 
Drive, Village Oaks Drive, Sierra Oaks Court, Chase Court and Rubicon Court shall be 
constructed on the Vesting Tentative Map and as approved by the City Engineer. 

ITEM 6A
20 of 122



13 
 

 
Private streets shall have signage and/or red painted curbs or pavement markings 
prohibiting parking along both sides of the streets. 
 

b. Water Mains: 
All water mains shall be constructed to meet PCWA standards. Larger services from 
water mains may be required to achieve adequate fire flow for fire sprinkler 
systems. Sample fire flow calculations shall be submitted with water infrastructure 
improvement plans to demonstrate that fire flow to residential and commercial 
buildings can be achieved with the proposed system.   

 
c. Sewer Collection Facilities:  

The on-site private sewer collection facilities shall be separated from the City’s 

sewer system by establishing a definitive point of connection by the installation of a 

manholes where private sewer collection mains connect to City mains. All sanitary 

sewer mains shall be constructed with a minimum 8-inch diameter pipe with 4-inch 

minimum laterals. 

 

d. Storm Drain Facilities:   
Construct private on-site drainage facilities, detention facilities, weirs and other 
appurtenances to collect and convey all surface drainage to an approved outfall. 
Provide for the positive drainage of all adjacent upstream or upgrade properties to 
prevent ponding. Off-site peak storm water discharge shall not exceed 90% of the 
undeveloped peak flow from the 24-hour, 100-year event.  

 

e. Stormwater Quality Facilities: 
Permanent on-site private post-construction stormwater treatment BMPs shall be 
designed and constructed in accordance with the approved SWCP and contained in 
easements in favor, control of, maintenance of, and responsibility of the HOA. 

 
67. Prior to SUBMITTAL OF THE IMPROVEMENT PLANS, the applicant shall: 

 
a. Pay an initial cash deposit for City plan check services in amount to be determined by 

the City prior to the time of submittal.  The Project engineer shall contact City staff to 
discuss submittal details to determine initial deposit amount. 
 

b. Pothole and physically determine (by way of a survey performed by the Engineer of 

record) the actual horizontal location and vertical depth of all existing underground 

utilities throughout the proposed area of work and provide the design of all new utility 

installations required to serve the project including a schedule for implementation of 

such work as to prevent disrupting of utility service to adjacent properties. 

 

ITEM 6A
21 of 122



14 
 

c. Provide a preliminary report and schematic plan prepared by a registered Civil Engineer 

of the proposed public potable water system with sufficient detail for PCWA to perform 

a hydraulic model of the proposed improvements to verify its ability to meet all of the 

system requirements.  

 

d. Provide a report, including calculations, demonstrating sufficient water pressure and 

flow for operation of fire hydrants and individual fire sprinklers systems to each building 

can be provided. 

 
68. Prior to APPROVAL OF THE IMPROVEMENT PLANS, the applicant shall: 

 
a. Provide written acknowledgment by the Geotechnical Engineer of Record that 

the Plans incorporate all design and construction criteria specified in the 
Geotechnical Report. 

 
b. Furnish proof of the acquisition of all rights of entry and/or temporary and 

permanent easements necessary to construct the project and the location of all 
such rights on the Plans. 

 

c. Furnish proof that any permits that are required by the California Department of 
Fish &Wildlife, State and Regional Water Quality Control Board, US Army Corps 
of Engineers and any other regulatory agencies with jurisdiction over the 
proposed construction have been obtained. 

 
d. Submit a copy of the Notice of Intent and WDID# for coverage under the State 

Water Resources Control Board' General Construction Permit for Stormwater 
Discharges Associated with Construction and Land Disturbance Activities (Order 
2009-0009-DWQ). 

 

e. To the satisfaction of the PCWA, provide a final PS&E (plans, specifications, and 
estimate) package for the water system improvements including pressure 
reducing station, mains, valves and all associated piping. 

 

f. Provide the following: 
1) Public Street Repair Plan 
2) Utility Plan and Joint Trench Plan 
3) Construction Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) 
4) Drainage Report 
5) Post-Construction Stormwater Runoff Management Plan (SRMP) 
6) Geotechnical Report 
7) Construction Traffic Control Plan. 

 

69. Prior to COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES, the Applicant shall:  

ITEM 6A
22 of 122



15 
 

 
a. Pay off all current cash deposit account balances with the City. 

 
b. Pay an inspection fee in an amount to be determined at the time of commencement for 

the City's inspection of the public improvements. 
 

c. Conduct a pre-construction meeting with representatives of the City whereby the 
Applicant, the Legally Responsible Party (LRP), Qualified SWPPP Practitioner (QSP), 
Qualified SWPPP Developer (QSD), and/or the Contractor provides the following: 
 

(1) Six (6) full-size bond copies of the approved Improvement Plans for the City's 
use. 

(2)  One (1) job-site copy of the latest edition of the Public Works Standards for 
the Contractor use. 

(3) One (1) job-site copy of the SWPPP for use by the LRP, QSP, QSD, and 
Contractor. 

 
70.  Prior to RECORDATION OF THE FINAL MAP, the Applicant shall: 

 
a. Record the Lot Line Adjustment between Parcel 2, Parcel 3, and Parcel 4. 
 
b. Construct all public and private improvements to the satisfaction of the City 

Engineer. Alternatively, the Applicant may enter into a Subdivision Improvement 
Agreement with the City agreeing for completion all of the public and private 
Improvements prior to occupancy of the first unit. Such an agreement will 
require the Applicant to provide bonds, proof of workers compensation 
insurance, and general liability insurance in the forms and amounts as deemed 
satisfactory to the City. 

 
c. Establish a Homeowner’s Association (HOA) in accordance with State law with 

recorded Codes, Covenants, & Restrictions (CC&Rs) that are satisfactory to the 
City to provide long-term and ongoing maintenance of all of the private 
improvements identified above.  Specifically, the HOA will be responsible for the 
long-term and ongoing maintenance of the private streets, sidewalks, 
streetlights, storm drain facilities (including the detention basin) and stormwater 
quality facilities within the limits of the subdivision.  The City will have 
enforcement authority over the HOA’s maintenance obligations and the 
obligation to review and approved proposed changes amendments to the 
CC&R’s.  The CC&R’s shall require the HOA to create and maintain a separate 
maintenance reserve fund in the amount of a percentage of the cost of 
constructing the HOA maintained improvements listed above.  Said percentage 
will be determined by the City prior to recordation of the CC&Rs.   

 

ITEM 6A
23 of 122



16 
 

d. Generally, in substantial conformance with that which is shown on the approved 
Vesting Tentative Map, convey all easements and dedications, public and 
private, for the construction, use and/or maintenance of, roads, trails, or other 
access, on the Final Map, or by separate instrument recorded concurrently and 
referenced on the Final Map. All dedications to the City shall be Irrevocable 
Offers of Dedication. Dedications to the City over the adjacent parcels for 
emergency access shall be made by separate instrument. 

 

e. Abandon any existing easements that are relocated or otherwise no longer 
needed. 

 

f. Submit signed deeds with Certificates of Acceptance for all dedications to the 
City of Colfax. 

 
71. Prior to APPROVAL OF A BUILDING PERMIT, the Applicant shall:  

 
a. Pay all cash deposit account balances and current City, PCWA, School and Fire 

fees (Mitigation & Capacity) based on the rate in effect at the time of permit 
issuance, irrespective of the date of vesting of the Vesting Tentative Map. 

 
b. Complete the required PCWA water system improvements including the 

pressure reducing station and all necessary piping up to, and including the points 
of connection to the private water system.  Said improvements shall be tested to 
the satisfaction of the PCWA, City Engineer and Fire. 

 

72. Prior to OCCUPANCY OF ANY BUILDING, the Applicant shall: 
 

a. Submit an inspector's punch list indicating that all of the improvements for each 
phase are constructed to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 

 
b. Restore all adjacent off-site road surfaces to pre-project conditions. 

 

c. Submit a certification by the Geotechnical Engineer of Record that all the work 
has been completed in substantial conformance with the recommendations in 
Soils Investigation/Geotechnical Report. 

 

d. Submit testing certification all backflow devices installed. 
 

e. Provide a Mylar and digital copy of the Improvement Plans that include all as-
built or field changes, in digital AutoCAD (.dwg) and (.shp) format (void of any 
AutoCAD block entities preventing full editing capabilities of the drawings), 
compatible with the City's current version, and tied to the City's coordinate 
system. 

ITEM 6A
24 of 122



17 
 

 

f. Provide a letter stating that all of the Developer’s Conditions of Approval have 
been met. 

 
g. Provide a letter from the Civil Engineer of Record certifying that all the site 

improvements were constructed and inspected in substantial conformance with 
the approved plans and City Standards. 

 
h. Provide letter(s) from the Architect of Record, Structural Engineer of Record and 

all other design professionals who signed the building permit plan submittal 
indicating that all the building improvements have been constructed in 
substantial conformance with their plans. 

 

i. Either enter into and record a Post-Construction Stormwater Operations and 
Maintenance Agreement with the City that shall be transferrable to the 
established HOA, or include the post construction stormwater operations and 
maintenance obligation in the CC&Rs. 

 

 
 
 
 
     END OF CONDITIONS 

ITEM 6A
25 of 122



ITEM 6A
26 of 122



ITEM 6A
27 of 122



ITEM 6A
28 of 122



ITEM 6A
29 of 122



ITEM 6A
30 of 122



ITEM 6A
31 of 122



ITEM 6A
32 of 122



ITEM 6A
33 of 122



ITEM 6A
34 of 122



ITEM 6A
35 of 122



ITEM 6A
36 of 122



ITEM 6A
37 of 122



ITEM 6A
38 of 122



ITEM 6A
39 of 122



ITEM 6A
40 of 122



ITEM 6A
41 of 122



ITEM 6A
42 of 122



ITEM 6A
43 of 122



ITEM 6A
44 of 122



ITEM 6A
45 of 122



ITEM 6A
46 of 122



ITEM 6A
47 of 122



ITEM 6A
48 of 122



ITEM 6A
49 of 122



ITEM 6A
50 of 122



ITEM 6A
51 of 122



ITEM 6A
52 of 122



ITEM 6A
53 of 122



ITEM 6A
54 of 122



ITEM 6A
55 of 122



ITEM 6A
56 of 122



ITEM 6A
57 of 122



ITEM 6A
58 of 122



ITEM 6A
59 of 122



ITEM 6A
60 of 122



ITEM 6A
61 of 122



ITEM 6A
62 of 122



ITEM 6A
63 of 122



ITEM 6A
64 of 122



ITEM 6A
65 of 122



ITEM 6A
66 of 122



ITEM 6A
67 of 122



ITEM 6A
68 of 122



ITEM 6A
69 of 122



ITEM 6A
70 of 122



ITEM 6A
71 of 122



ITEM 6A
72 of 122



ITEM 6A
73 of 122



ITEM 6A
74 of 122



ITEM 6A
75 of 122



ITEM 6A
76 of 122



ITEM 6A
77 of 122



ITEM 6A
78 of 122



ITEM 6A
79 of 122



ITEM 6A
80 of 122



ITEM 6A
81 of 122



ITEM 6A
82 of 122



ITEM 6A
83 of 122



ITEM 6A
84 of 122



ITEM 6A
85 of 122



ITEM 6A
86 of 122



ITEM 6A
87 of 122



ITEM 6A
88 of 122



ITEM 6A
89 of 122



ITEM 6A
90 of 122



ITEM 6A
91 of 122



ITEM 6A
92 of 122



ITEM 6A
93 of 122



ITEM 6A
94 of 122



ITEM 6A
95 of 122



ITEM 6A
96 of 122



ITEM 6A
97 of 122



ITEM 6A
98 of 122



ITEM 6A
99 of 122



ITEM 6A
100 of 122



ITEM 6A
101 of 122



ITEM 6A
102 of 122



ITEM 6A
103 of 122



ITEM 6A
104 of 122



ITEM 6A
105 of 122



ITEM 6A
106 of 122



ITEM 6A
107 of 122



ITEM 6A
108 of 122



ITEM 6A
109 of 122



ITEM 6A
110 of 122



ITEM 6A
111 of 122



ITEM 6A
112 of 122



ITEM 6A
113 of 122



ITEM 6A
114 of 122



ITEM 6A
115 of 122



ITEM 6A
116 of 122



ITEM 6A
117 of 122



ITEM 6A
118 of 122



ITEM 6A
119 of 122



ITEM 6A
120 of 122



ITEM 6A
121 of 122



ITEM 6A
122 of 122



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE DECEMBER 14, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: John Schempf, City Manager 

PREPARED By: Wes Heathcock, Community Services Director 

SUBJECT: Public Works Vehicle Purchase 

 

 N/A  X FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: $88,300 FROM FUND: 100-500  

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 49-2016 approving the purchase of two public works 
vehicles from Winner Chevrolet in an amount not to exceed $88,300. 

 
DISCUSSION AND SUMMARY: 
 
The City of Colfax Public Works Department vehicles have aged to a point that they are no longer 
dependable.  In anticipation of the vehicle replace needs of the Department, staff proposed the purchase of 
new vehicles in the 2016/17 fiscal budget year.  Council approved two vehicle capital expenditure 
purchases during the budget adoption in June of 2016.  
 
The vehicles that are scheduled for replacement are the 1992 Chevrolet 4x4 1-ton and 1998 Chevrolet 4x4 
¾-ton.  The goal is to replace them with a more suitable vehicle application.  The trucks that will replace the 
aforementioned vehicles will be 2500 Chevrolet (¾ - ton) 4x4 equipped with utility box bed and Meyer 
Snow Plow attachment.  The 2500 Chevrolet application provides for a more effective use of labor 
resources by stocking the vehicles with the basic tools and the ability to tow the Department’s equipment.  
 
Staff approached Winner Chevrolet and Downtown Ford for competitive government bids.  The Winner 
Chevrolet bid was $44,127 per vehicle.  The Downtown Ford quote totaled $54,031 per vehicle for the 
same vehicle application.  Staff is recommending Council approve the purchase through Winner Chevrolet 
based on the cost savings. 
 
The purchase includes a 5-year bumper to bumper extended warranty through Old Republic Insured 
Automotive Services.  The warranty covers vehicle repairs not covered under the basic powertrain 
coverage.  Items not covered are parts intended to wear or maintenance services.  Conversely, oil changes 
are part of the initial service provided by the dealer every 12,000 miles up to 24,000 miles or the after 2-
years of the vehicle purchase. Staff did not pursue a scheduled maintenance (oil changes) plan because 
there was no cost savings in the plan. 
 
 

ITEM 7A
1 of 8



 

 

FINANCIAL AND/OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
The vehicle purchase will be funded from the capital expenditures line item 100-500 approved in the Fiscal 
Year Budget 2016/17.  The total budget for the item was $80,000 during this year; therefore, the vehicle 
purchases exceed the estimated budget.  Conversely, the approved Public Works vehicle purchase in the 
2017/18 fiscal will be significantly discounted given the vehicle will not need to be equipped with a $7000 
Meyer Snow Plow.  In the combined 2-year budget, the cost overage is approximately 4-percent ($5000), 
which is not significant enough to warrant a budget amendment.   
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution 49-2016 
2. Proposals 
3. Extended Warranty 

 

ITEM 7A
2 of 8



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 49-2016 
 

APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF TWO PUBLIC WORKS VEHICLES FROM 
WINNER CHEVROLET IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $88,300 

 

WHEREAS, the public works vehicles have aged to a point that they are no longer 
dependable; and, 

 
WHEREAS, at the June 8, 2016, City Council approved the purchase of two public 

works vehicles in the 2016/17 budget; and,  
 

WHEREAS, City staff consulted Winner Chevrolet and Downtown Ford for 
competitive government bids; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City staff is recommending approving the purchase from Winner 

Chevrolet for maintenance convenience and the City’s benefit in sales tax revenue from the 
purchase. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax 
approves the purchase of two public works vehicles from Winner Chevrolet in the amount 
not to exceed $88,300.  

 
THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at a 

regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 14th day of December, 
2016 by the following vote of the Council: 
 
AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   

                                                                 
___________________________________ 

       Tom Parnham, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 

Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM 7A
3 of 8



Municipal Bid Quote
CITY OF COLFAX

2016 SILVERADO 2500HD REGULAR CAB

2017 MODEL FACTORY ORDER

Discounted truck price: $34,520.00
knapheide utility $6,800.00
meyers snow plow $6,900.00
Total DISC Price $48,220.00

GOV BID ASSISTANCE $9,000.00

Purchase Price: $39,220.00
CA Sales Tax $2,947.50
license exempt $0.00
Dir Doc Fee $80.00
CA TIRE FEE $8.75
5 year or lOOK mile $1 ,870.00@reme coverage extended svc
“Out the Door” TOTAL $44,126.25

NO 2016 TRUCKS EXIST EQUIPPED THIS WAY
MUST BE 2017 FACTORY ORDER 6-8 WEEK LEAD TIME
TRUCK PRICE WITHOUT UTILITY AND SNOW PLOW: $25520

ITEM 7A
4 of 8



i
SA- ERVC• BCZ’VNOP- PUtT TOWUG

—

F

www.Wiiiiiei hevy.com SZ [ES :530 34-4 152
.4[’-4i7

ITEM 7A
5 of 8



Supreme Plan Coverage

Supreme Plan Coverage

Supreme is our most comprehensive cos erage plan.

The Supreme Plan complements yocir vehicles factory warranty

pros ided by the manufacturer. In fact, the Scipreme Plan provides

mechanical breakdown protection tot all original equipment

factory installed mechanical and electrical parts and assemblies

ofyour vehicle, EXCEPt for those parts and services listed cinder

the General Exclusions” section of the service contract.

Supreme Wrap Plan Coverage

Supplemental protection br vehicles with extended lactory

pow ertratn coverage.

Supreme \rap ‘wraps around” the vehicle manufacturer’s
ssarranty by providing coverage for all original NON
POWERIRAIN factory installed mechanical and electrical
parts and assemblies ob’ your vehicle for mechanical breakdoss n,
EXCEPT for parts and services listed tinder the •‘Ceneral
Exclusions” section ot’thc service contract.

Examples of parts and services not
covered are:

Adjustments and cleaning, battery and cables, drive
belts, coolant and vacuctm hoses, brakes: brake drums,
shoes, linings, disc rotors and pads, exhaust system
(including catalytic converter), filters, fluids (except in
conjunction with a covered repair), glass, lights (bulbs,
settled beams and lenses), lubricants, manual clutch
components. shock absorbers or MacPherson struts,
spark plugs atid ss Lrcs. squeaks and rattles, tune—ups.
wheel balancing and alignment, wiper hlade, coolant.
wheels, ss heel studs, door and windosv handles, cellular
phones. any component or equipment not installed by
the vehicle manu facturer

and

Maintenance sers ices recommended by your vehicle
manufticturcr.

.‘ -

Pleasc refer to the service contract for complete inlbrmation
regarding coverage.

ITEM 7A
6 of 8



Additional Benefits

in addition to the coverages detailed, you have the advantage of

extra benefits such as:

Towing:
In the event of a breakdown covered by this contract, all Total
Vehicle Protection Plans pros’ ide for reimbursement of receipted

tovving expenses up to seventy-five dollars ($75) per occurrence.

Car Rental:
If your vehicle incurs a covered breakdown, you may also be
eligible to receive reimbursement for a portion of your car rental
costs The amottnt depends upon the total authorized cost of

covered repairs for each repair visit, as shown in the table below:

Repair $200 - $501 $1,001—’$1,501 —

001’Cost $500 j0 $1,500 $2,000

Reimhure-
$50 $100 $150 $200 $250inent

Trip Interrttption:
in case of a mechanical breakdown that occurs more than one
hundred (100) miles from home and results in a repair facility
keepinu your vehicle overnight, you can rest easier knowing
the contract will reimburse for receipted hotel and restaurant
expenses. You could he reimbursed up to one hundred dollars

($100) per day for a maximum of three (3) days and a total benefit
per occurrence of three hundred dollars (S300).

Please refer to the service contract liar complete information regarding

coverage.

Roadside Assistance*:
.\ll of our plans provide reimbursement for Roadside Assistance,
subject to a fifty dollars ($50) per occtirrence limitation. The
emergency services for which this vvould apply arc:

• Lock-Out Assistance

• Fuel DeliveR Services

• Flat Tire Assistaitce

Battery Sets ice

\a: available in some states.

Tire Road Hazard:
R:a: Hazard aenen: PCO\ tdCS coverage for the repair, or

or \our eh:les tires which
a darna:ed or use dcc to a road hazard loss

::: of:; e:n:rac:. T:re coy e:aee coy er unto two
ceurrence or eight hundred dollars

d_rinz die iC1 of the coniraci.

N Deducuhie applies to the additional benefits.

ITEM 7A
7 of 8



THS ISYQUR QUOTE
DOWNTOWN FORD SALES
525 N16th3re, Sacrarrnto, CA 95811
916-442-6931 fax 916-491-3138

QUOTATION

3120716 1254

Date
REP
Phone
FOB

$16,992.00
$8,916.00

$80.00

Subtotal
Delivery

Taxes PLACER

TOTAL

12/7/2016
SANDRA -

916-442-6931
SACRAMENTO

$16,992.00
$8,916.00

$80.00

— $49,904.00
$375.00

$3,742.80

$54,030.55

Customer
WES HEATH000K1Nam e

Address
City
Phone

CITY OF COLFAX

VIA EMAIL
State CA

_____

Description Unit Price
1 2017 FORD F250 4X4 REG CAB PICKUP

STATE OF CALIFORNIA CONTRACT 1-16-23-20A
CLIN 18RANK2

I HARBOR SERVICE BODY - SEE ATTACHED
I MEYER ‘LOT PRO SNOW PLOW PKG - SEE ATTACHED
I DOCFEE

$23,916.00 $23916.00

PLEASE SEE SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS
ATTACHED
THANK YOU

Payment Detáls
Cash0

0
Check
Credit Card

Name

____________ ________

CC #
Expires

CATirelax $8.75

ieUseOnIy - -

$500 DISCOUNT WITH PAYMENT IN 20 DAYS

ITEM 7A
8 of 8



 

 

 

 

 
 

FOR THE DECEMBER 14, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: John Schempf, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: John Brownlee, Building Official 

DATE: December 6, 2016 
SUBJECT:  Introduction and first reading of Ordinance 531: an Ordinance of the City Council of 

the City of Colfax repealing and amending chapter 15.04 and 15.08 of the Colfax 
Municipal Code and adopting by reference the most recent editions of the following 
standard codes: the California Building Standards Code (Cal. Code Of Regs. Title 24) 
including the California Administrative Code (Part 1),  the California Building Code 
(Part 2), the California Residential Code (Part 2.5), the California Electrical Code (Part 
3), the California Mechanical Code (Part 4), the California Plumbing Code (Part 5), 
the California Energy Code (Part 6), the California Historical Building Code (Part 8), 
the California Fire Code (Part 9), the California Existing Building Code (Part 10), the 
California Green Building Standards Code (Part 11- Cal Green)  & the California 
Referenced Standards Code (Part 12) together with amendments and additions to 
the various codes providing for penalties for the violation thereof, repealing all other 
ordinances in conflict therewith  

 

 N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:    

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Introduce the proposed ordinance  by title only, waive the first reading and 
schedule a public hearing for second reading and adoption at the January 11, 2017 regularly scheduled 
City Council Meeting to be effective 30 days thereafter.  

 

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY: 

  

On January 1, 2017 the new California Construction Codes will go into effect necessitating the revision of our 

municipal code which references the 2013 California codes.  The changes being proposed will eliminate the need to 

update the municipal code every three years as the California Construction Codes change.  In addition this 

opportunity provides a chance to eliminate old municipal code sections that no longer apply such as the Colfax 

Water, Fire and Police departments, and the recent change in the jurisdiction of mobile home and recreational 

vehicle parks.   

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Cost savings for not updating the municipal code every three years. 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 Ordinance 531 and exhibits 

ITEM 7B
1 of 19



 

161214 Ordinance 531 (Cover) 1 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Ordinance № 531 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLFAX 
REPEALING AND AMENDING CHAPTER 15.04 AND 15.08 OF THE COLFAX 

MUNICIPAL CODE AND ADOPTING BY REFERENCE THE MOST RECENT 
EDITIONS OF THE FOLLOWING STANDARD CODES: THE CALIFORNIA 

BUILDING STANDARDS CODE (CAL. CODE OF REGS. TITLE 24) INCLUDING 
THE CALIFORNIA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE (PART 1),  THE CALIFORNIA 

BUILDING CODE (PART 2), THE CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL CODE (PART 
2.5), THE CALIFORNIA ELECTRICAL CODE (PART 3), THE CALIFORNIA 

MECHANICAL CODE (PART 4), THE CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE (PART 
5), THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY CODE (PART 6), THE CALIFORNIA 

HISTORICAL BUILDING CODE (PART 8), THE CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE 
(PART 9), THE CALIFORNIA EXISTING BUILDING CODE (PART 10), THE 

CALIFORNIA GREEN BUILDING STANDARDS CODE (PART 11- CAL GREEN)  
& THE CALIFORNIA REFERENCED STANDARDS CODE (PART 12) 

TOGETHER WITH AMENDMENTS AND ADDITIONS TO THE VARIOUS 
CODES PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES FOR THE VIOLATION THEREOF, 

REPEALING ALL OTHER ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT THEREWITH 

 

The City Council of the City of Colfax does ordain as follows: 
  

Section 1:  

Colfax Municipal Code is amended in accordance with the Ordinance attached hereto as Exhibit 

A which is incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

Section 2. Superseding Provisions 

The provisions of this Ordinance and any resolution adopted pursuant hereto shall supersede and 

repeal any previous Ordinance or resolution to the extent the same is in conflict herewith.  
 

Section 3. Severability 

If any section, phrase, sentence or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or 

unconstitutional by the final judgment of any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall 

be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision; and such holding shall not affect the 

validity of the remaining portions hereof.  

 

Section 4.  Effective Date 
 

This ordinance shall be in full force and effect thirty (30) days from and after its adoption. 

 

This ordinance shall, within 15 days after its adoption, be published or posted in accordance with 

Section 36933 of the Government Code of the State of California with the names of those City 

Council members voting for and against it. 

ITEM 7B
2 of 19



 

161214 Ordinance 531 (Cover) 2 

 

The foregoing Ordinance was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Colfax held on the 14
th

 day of December, 2016, and passed at a regular meeting of the City 

Council held on the 11
th

 day of January, 2017, at a duly held regular meeting of the City of 

Colfax, by the following vote:   
 

 

AYES:    

NOES:    

ABSENT:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

        ______________________________ 

        Steve Harvey, Mayor  

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:     ATTEST:  

 

 

 

 

_______________________________   _____________________________ 

Alfred Cabral, City Attorney     Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM 7B
3 of 19



Ordinance 531 Attachment A 1  

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Ordinance № 531 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF COLFAX AND AMENDING CHAPTER 
15.04 AND 15.08 OF THE COLFAX MUNICIPAL CODE AND ADOPTING BY 

REFERENCE THE MOST RECENT EDITIONS OF THE FOLLOWING 
STANDARD CODES: THE CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS CODE (CAL. 

CODE OF REGS. TITLE 24) INCLUDING THE CALIFORNIA 
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE (PART 1),  THE CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE 

(PART 2), THE CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL CODE (PART 2.5), THE 
CALIFORNIA ELECTRICAL CODE (PART 3), THE CALIFORNIA 

MECHANICAL CODE (PART 4), THE CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE (PART 
5), THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY CODE (PART 6), THE CALIFORNIA 

HISTORICAL BUILDING CODE (PART 8), THE CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE 
(PART 9), THE CALIFORNIA EXISTING BUILDING CODE (PART 10), THE 

CALIFORNIA GREEN BUILDING STANDARDS CODE (PART 11- CAL GREEN)  
& THE CALIFORNIA REFERENCED STANDARDS CODE (PART 12) 

TOGETHER WITH OTHER AMENDMENTS  

The City Council of The City of Colfax does ordain as follows: 

 

Section 1. 

 

The following sections of Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 15.04 and 15.08 are hereby repealed:  

Sections 15.04.010, 15.04.015, 15.04.020, 15.04.025, 15.04.030, 15.04.035, 15.04.040, 

15.04.045, 15.04.050, 15.04.055, 15.04.060, 15.04.100, 15.04.130, 15.08.010, and 15.08.020. 

 

Section 2.  Purpose and Authority. 

 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to adopt by reference the most recent editions of the California 

Building Standards Code (California Code of Regulations Title 24, Parts 1, 2, 2.5, 3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 

10, 11 and 12), as periodically amended, to repeal provisions inconsistent therewith, and to 

provide minimum requirements and standards for the protection of the public safety, health, 

property and welfare of the City of Colfax. This Ordinance is adopted under the authority of 

Government Code Section 50022.2 and Health and Safety Code Section 18941.5. All changes to 

the Colfax Municipal Code adopted by this Ordinance, and all subsequent amendments to the 

Codes incorporated by reference, shall apply and be incorporated into all forms and documents 

to which they relate. 

 

 

ITEM 7B
4 of 19



Ordinance 531 Attachment A 2  

Section 3.  Conflicts with Other Laws, Rules and Regulations. 

 

In the event of any conflict between this Code and any law, rule or regulation of the Federal or 

State Government, that requirement which establishes the higher standard of safety shall govern.  

Failure to comply with such standard of safety shall be a violation of this Code. 

 

Section 4.  Code Adoption By Reference. 

 

The following Codes are hereby adopted:  

 

15.04.10 California Building Standards Code Adopted. 

 

The most recent edition of the California Building Standards Code (California Code of 

Regulations Title 24), as periodically amended, is hereby adopted by reference, including the 

following Parts: 

 

California Building Standards Administrative Code (Cal. Code Regs. Title 24, Part 1) 

California Building Code (Cal. Code Regs. Title 24, Part 2) 

California Residential Code (Cal. Code Regs. Title 24, Part 2.5) 

California Electrical Code (Cal. Code Regs. Title 24, Part 3) 

California Mechanical Code (Cal. Code Regs. Title 24, Part 4) 

California Plumbing Code (Cal. Code Regs. Title 24, Part 5) 

California Energy Code (Cal. Code Regs. Title 24, Part 6) 

California Historical Building Code (Cal. Code Regs. Title 24, Part 8) 

California Fire Code (Cal. Code Regs. Title 24, Part 9) 

California Existing Building Code (Cal. Code Regs. Title 24, Part 10) 

California Green Building Standards Code (Cal. Code Regs. Title 24, Part 11) 

California Referenced Standards Code (Cal. Code Regs. Title 24, Part 12) 

 

There is one copy of each code on file in the office of the building official for use and 

examination by the public. 

 

Section 5.  Water Service System Repealed. 

 

Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 13.04 “Water Service System” is repealed in its entirety. 

 

Section 6.  Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 15.12 Amended. 

 

Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 15.12 “Encroachment Building Permits” is amended as reflected 

in Exhibit B hereto  

 

Section 7.  Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 15.16 Amended. 

 

Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 15.16 “Manufactured Buildings And Mobilehome Parks” is 

amended as reflected in Exhibit C hereto. 

ITEM 7B
5 of 19



Title 15 - BUILDINGS AND CONSTRUCTION 

Chapter 15.12 ENCROACHMENT BUILDING PERMITS 

Colfax Ordinance 531 Exhibit B 1 

Chapter 15.12 ENCROACHMENT BUILDING PERMITS 
Sections:  

Article I. - General Provisions  

Article II. - Encroachment Permits  

Article I. General Provisions 

15.12.010 Denial—Grounds. 

15.12.020 Issuance—Building access required. 

15.12.030 Issuance—Improvements required. 

15.12.040 Reimbursement for costs of improvements. 

 

 

15.12.010 Denial—Grounds. 

No building or occupancy permit shall be issued when the council or a properly delegated authority, 
gives notice to the building official to withhold such permit where such action is deemed to be in the public 
interest, for the protection of the public health and safety or for the general public welfare, including 
noncompliance by the applicant with any law or any agreement with the city or the planning commission 
or which would constitute an improper land use. Any such denial of a permit shall contain a provision for 
the issuance of the permit upon the completion of the designated corrective action by the applicant.  

(Prior code § 8-3.01)  

15.12.020 Issuance—Building access required. 

Before a building permit shall be granted for any use other than a single-family residence, a 
committee of the planning commission shall make a written finding that the lot in question has adequate 
frontage upon a dedicated public street or upon a recorded private easement determined by the director 
of public works or the planning director to be adequate for purposes of access, including access for 
emergency vehicles, reasonably sufficient for the intended use.  

(Prior code § 8-3.02)  

15.12.030 Issuance—Improvements required. 

A. Curbs, gutters, drainage facilities, sidewalks and driveways for other than single-family dwellings: 
following a finding that a lot has adequate frontage as set forth in Section 15.12.020 of this chapter, 
no building permit for other than a single-family residential use shall be granted until the applicant 
has either installed, at his or her own expense, curbs, gutters, drainage facilities, sidewalks and a 
driveway, all according to the Standard Specifications of the city, in and on all street frontage lots to 
be used in conjunction with the building to be constructed or improved or, in the alternative, has 
entered into an improvement agreement with the city, in which the applicant agrees to install the 
improvements required by this subsection, either prior to the final inspection or prior to the issuance 
of a certificate of occupancy or upon a date not more than one year from the date of the 
improvement agreement, agreeing to hold the city and its agents, officers and employees free and 

ITEM 7B
6 of 19



Title 15 - BUILDINGS AND CONSTRUCTION 

Chapter 15.12 ENCROACHMENT BUILDING PERMITS 

Colfax Ordinance 531 Exhibit B 2 

harmless from all claims of any nature whatsoever arising in any way from the use and occupancy of 
the property or from the condition of the property. Such improvement agreement shall be in a form 
approved by the city. Unless it is waived by the city, the applicant shall furnish a performance bond in 
the amount deemed reasonably adequate by the director of public works or the planning director to 
secure full and complete performance of such agreement by the applicant.  

B. Curbs, gutters, drainage facilities, sidewalks and streets for single-family residential uses: whenever 
a lot is without standard curbs, gutters, drainage facilities, sidewalks or a paved street or any one of 
them and the building official determines that any one or more of them have already been 
constructed on forty (40) percent of the occupied frontage on the same side of the street as the 
property for which a building permit is sought, the applicant shall construct such improvements, 
according to the Standard Specifications of the city, before a building permit shall be granted for 
single-family residential uses. For the purpose of computing such percentage, the percentage shall 
be of the block not to exceed two hundred fifty (250) feet on either side of the property to a street 
corner.  

C. Paved streets: following a finding that the lot has adequate frontage as set forth in Section 15.12.020 
of this chapter and upon a joint finding by the chief of police and the director of public works that the 
proposed occupancy of the premises is such that it will result in an increase in traffic or create any 
hazardous condition so that a paved street is reasonably necessary in order to protect the public, the 
applicant shall be required to pave, according to the Standard Specifications of the city, one-half the 
width of such street prior to the issuance of a building permit for other than single-family residential 
uses; provided, however, that such paving need not exceed thirty-three (33) feet in width. Where the 
frontage is on a private easement, the chief of police and the director of public works, upon such a 
joint finding, may require the entire width of such private easement to be so paved and adequate 
drainage to be provided.  

D. Street widening and corner rounding: following a finding that a lot has adequate frontage, as set forth 
in Section 15.12.020 of this chapter and in all cases where the council determines, because of 
increased traffic caused by the intended use, that street widening or corner rounding is required, the 
property owner shall deed to the city, at no cost to the city, an adequate right-of-way therefor prior to 
the granting of a building permit for other than single-family residential uses.  

E. Fire hydrants: following a finding that a lot has adequate frontage, as set forth in Section 15.12.020 
of this chapter and if there is not, within two hundred fifty (250) feet of all parts of the proposed 
building, a fire hydrant approved by the fire chief as providing reasonably suitable fire protection for 
such building, the applicant shall be required, as a condition of the issuance of a building permit for 
other than single-family residential uses, to construct a fire main from the nearest existing city fire 
main to a point within two hundred fifty (250) feet of all parts of the proposed building and to 
establish one fire hydrant at such point in a location to be designated by the fire chief, together with 
such additional fire hydrants in locations as designated by the fire chief, for each twenty-five 
thousand (25,000) square feet of building space. Such fire main and hydrant shall be located, 
installed and constructed in accordance with the existing standards of the Pacific Fire Rating Bureau 
for such installations. If requested by the applicant, the decision of the fire chief shall be given in 
writing within ten (10) days after the request is made and the applicant shall thereupon have the right 
to appeal to the council by filing a notice of appeal in letter form with a filing fee of ten dollars 
($10.00). The council shall thereupon hear the appeal within a reasonable time and may sustain, 
modify or reverse in any particular the decision of the fire chief.  

(Prior code § 8-3.03)  

15.12.040 Reimbursement for costs of improvements. 

Any applicant for a building permit who is required to construct public improvements pursuant to this 
chapter, which improvements would benefit other property owners who would otherwise be required to 
construct such improvements, may enter into an agreement with the city for the reimbursement of a pro 

ITEM 7B
7 of 19



Title 15 - BUILDINGS AND CONSTRUCTION 

Chapter 15.12 ENCROACHMENT BUILDING PERMITS 

Colfax Ordinance 531 Exhibit B 3 

rata share of the initial cost of constructing such improvements from such other property owners upon the 
development of real property by such other benefiting property owners.  

(Prior code § 8-3.04)  

Article II. Encroachment Permits 

15.12.050 Permit—Required. 

15.12.060 Permit—Application. 

15.12.070 Permit—Fee. 

15.12.080 Permit—Deposit or bond. 

15.12.090 Permit—Major project surety and fee. 

15.12.100 Permit—Insurance certificate. 

15.12.110 Permit—Secured when. 

15.12.120 Permit—Transferability—Work start and completion. 

15.12.130 Permit—Refusal. 

15.12.140 Permit—Revocation. 

15.12.150 Scope of excavation—Notice and inspection hours. 

15.12.160 Excavation restrictions—Restoration standards. 

15.12.170 Passage—Emergency facilities access. 

15.12.180 Safety—Devices. 

15.12.190 Safety—Legal compliance. 

15.12.200 Violation—Penalty. 

 

 

15.12.050 Permit—Required. 

It is unlawful for any person to make or cause or permit to be made any excavation in or under the 
surface of any public street, alley, sidewalk or other public place for the installation, repair or removal of 
any tank, pipe, conduit, duct or tunnel or for any other purposes without first obtaining from the building 
inspector a written permit to make such excavations and making a deposit and executing a bond as 
provided in this chapter.  

(Prior code § 8-4.01)  

15.12.060 Permit—Application. 

Application for encroachment permits shall be made on a form provided by the city. The application 
shall state the name and address of the applicant and shall state the location, type and purpose of the 
proposed excavation or encroachment and, if requested, shall provide a drawing and other information 
showing the location and extent of excavation.  

(Prior code § 8-4.02)  

ITEM 7B
8 of 19



Title 15 - BUILDINGS AND CONSTRUCTION 

Chapter 15.12 ENCROACHMENT BUILDING PERMITS 

Colfax Ordinance 531 Exhibit B 4 

15.12.070 Permit—Fee. 

The city shall collect a fee in the amount set forth below before issuing any encroachment permit.  

Valuation of Construction Cost or Contract Price Fee 

$1.00 to $5,000.00 $60.00 

$5,001.00 to $10,000.00 $90.00 

$10,001.00 or more 1% of valuation or contract, whichever is higher 

Residential driveway encroachments $30.00 

  

(Prior code § 8-4.03)  

15.12.080 Permit—Deposit or bond. 

The applicant shall post with the city building official a cash deposit or a good and sufficient 
approved corporate surety bond in the amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) to guarantee the 
faithful and proper performance of the work before any encroachment permit shall be issued. However, if 
the applicant can show evidence of financial ability satisfying the Public Works Director building official, it 
will not be necessary for the applicant to post a bond.  

(Prior code § 8-4.04)  

15.12.090 Permit—Major project surety and fee. 

If the proposed work is of major consideration, then the fees and bond shall be as set by the Public 
Works Director city engineer. A "major project" means the installation or replacement of any underground 
facility other than a service from an existing main to a single user. However, if the applicant can show 
evidence of financial ability satisfying the Public Works Director city engineer, it will not be necessary for 
the applicant to post a bond.  

(Prior code § 8-4.05)  

15.12.100 Permit—Insurance certificate. 

The permittee shall file with the city a certificate of insurance showing that the permittee has in effect 
public liability insurance for bodily injury in the amount of one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00) for 
each person and three hundred thousand dollars ($300,000.00) for each accident and twenty thousand 
dollars ($20,000.00) for property damage, before being issued a permit, excepting those persons, 
corporations or companies that are permissively self-insured under the laws of the state.  

(Prior code § 8-4.06)  

ITEM 7B
9 of 19



Title 15 - BUILDINGS AND CONSTRUCTION 

Chapter 15.12 ENCROACHMENT BUILDING PERMITS 

Colfax Ordinance 531 Exhibit B 5 

15.12.110 Permit—Secured when. 

All required permits shall be secured at least two working days prior to the time the work under such 
permit is proposed; except that where an emergency street cut is to be made, the applicant shall 
immediately give prior notice to the Public Works Director building inspector and shall make application 
for such work on the next working day.  

(Prior code § 8-4.07)  

15.12.120 Permit—Transferability—Work start and completion. 

No permit shall be transferable. Every permit shall be void unless the proposed work is commenced 
within fifteen (15) days from the date of issuance of the permit and the work is completed within a 
reasonable time of commencement unless prior arrangements are made with the city.  

(Prior code § 8-4.08)  

15.12.130 Permit—Refusal. 

The city shall have the right to refuse to issue a permit to any person who is in violation of or who 
has failed to comply with any provision of this chapter in connection with the permit being applied for or 
any previous permit.  

(Prior code § 8-4.09)  

15.12.140 Permit—Revocation. 

The city may revoke any permit issued for noncompliance with any of the provisions of this chapter.  

(Prior code § 8-4.10)  

15.12.150 Scope of excavation—Notice and inspection hours. 

A. Excavations shall be confined to the work described in the permits. 

B. Each permittee shall notify the building inspector when excavation under the permit will be 
commenced and such notice shall be given at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to such 
commencement. All work under any permit shall be done and completed under the inspection of the 
Public Works Director building inspector or city engineer.  

C. Except in cases of emergency, no work shall be done at any other time than between the hours of 
eight a.m. and five p.m. from Monday through Friday, unless prior arrangements have been made at 
the time the permit is issued or in the case of an emergency.  

(Prior code § 8-4.11)  

15.12.160 Excavation restrictions—Restoration standards. 

All excavations and back filling shall be done in the following manner:  

A. No excavation shall be made on any street in any way to constitute a traffic hazard. 

B. All excavated material shall be removed from the public right-of-way and disposed of off the 
public right-of-way or as directed by the Public Works Director building inspector.  

ITEM 7B
10 of 19



Title 15 - BUILDINGS AND CONSTRUCTION 

Chapter 15.12 ENCROACHMENT BUILDING PERMITS 

Colfax Ordinance 531 Exhibit B 6 

C. All excavation shall be filled with clean sand to within eight inches of the existing or established 
street surface elevation and shall be thoroughly flooded.  

D. After flooded sand has become firm and sufficiently dry, the ditch shall be filled with six inches 
of aggregate base rock plus three inches of asphaltic plan mix surfacing.  

E. Permittee shall attain ninety (90) percent relative compaction as determined using the most 
recent A.A.S.H.O. method.  

F. A minimum of thirty (30) inches of cover shall be provided over all pipes and conduits unless 
prior approval has been given by the Public Works Director city engineer.  

G. All material used as provided in this section shall conform to the Placer County Standard 
Specifications applicable sections of the most recent issue of the State Division of Highways 
and Standard Specifications.  

(Prior code § 8-4.12)  

15.12.170 Passage—Emergency facilities access. 

A. The permittee shall at all times maintain at least one safe crossing and unobstructed passage for 
vehicle traffic and pedestrians around any excavations.  

B. Free access must be provided to all fire hydrants and other public service structures and property 
that may be required for emergency purposes.  

(Prior code § 8-4.13)  

15.12.180 Safety—Devices. 

The permittee shall provide and maintain during the performance of the work such barricade, 
warning directional signals, flares and other safety devises which are required by law or are deemed 
necessary for the safety and protection of the public.  

(Prior code § 8-4.14)  

15.12.190 Safety—Legal compliance. 

The permittee shall obey and enforce all safety orders, rules and recommendations of the Division of 
Industrial Safety of the state applicable to the work and permittee shall comply with all applicable state 
and local laws and ordinances.  

(Prior code § 8-4.15)  

15.12.200 Violation—Penalty. 

Any person, firm or corporation violating any provision of this article is guilty of a misdemeanor and 
upon conviction shall be punished as provided in Chapter 1.24 of this code.  

(Prior code § 8-4.16)  

ITEM 7B
11 of 19



Title 15 - BUILDINGS AND CONSTRUCTION 

Chapter 15.16 MANUFACTURED BUILDINGS AND MOBILEHOME PARKS 

Ordinance 531 Exhibit C 1 

Chapter 15.16 MANUFACTURED BUILDINGS AND MOBILEHOME PARKS 
 

The State Housing and Community Development Department (HCD) has the authority over Manufactured 
Buildings and requires that Building Departments enforce the provisions of the State Housing Law, 
Mobilehome Parks Act, Special Occupancy Parks Act, Employee Housing Act and the Factory-Built 
Housing Law unless the local jurisdiction returns such authority to the State. 

The City of Colfax returned the jurisdiction of these parks to the Department of Housing and Community 
Development on December 1, 2016 per Ordinance 530 passed on September 28, 2016. 

Sections: Article I - Manufactured Building Construction and Installation  

Article II - Mobilehome Park and Mobilehome Subdivision Construction Permits  

Article III - Regulation of Temporary Occupancy of Mobilehomes, Trailers or Recreational Vehicles  

Article I Manufactured Building Construction and Installation 

15.16.010 Definition. 

15.16.020 Permit required. 

15.16.030 Permit fees. 

15.16.040 Inspections, investigations and other fees. 

 

 

15.16.010 Definition. 

"Manufactured building" means any manufactured, pre-manufactured, modular or mobilehome 
building, dwelling or structure, including miscellaneous accessory buildings or structures or 
appurtenances thereto: (1) not constructed on-site; or (2) not constructed under the provisions of the 
applicable Uniform Building Codes.  

(Ord. 419 § 4 (part), 1994: prior code § 8-5.01)  

15.16.0120 Permit required. 

A permit shall be required for the construction and installation of all manufactured buildings on 
private property. Only Manufactured Homes as defined in the Health and Safety Code (HSC) Section 
18007 and Commercial Modular as defined in HSC § 18001.8 will be allowed. 

(Ord. 419 § 4 (part), 1994: prior code § 8-5.02)  

15.16.030 Permit fees. 

The fees for a permit to install, assemble, alter, add to, repair or construct each manufactured 
building, miscellaneous accessory structure and electrical, plumbing and mechanical installation, shall be 
as follows:  

A. Plan Review Fee. Forty-five dollars ($45.00) per hour, with a minimum charge of one-half hour.  

ITEM 7B
12 of 19



Title 15 - BUILDINGS AND CONSTRUCTION 

Chapter 15.16 MANUFACTURED BUILDINGS AND MOBILEHOME PARKS 

Ordinance 531 Exhibit C 2 

B. Installation/Construction Fee. The permit fee shall be based upon the total contract price or the 
total valuation of all work, whichever is greater, as follows:  

Total Valuation/Contract Fee 

Up to $1,500.00 $30.00 

$1,501.00 to $3,000.00 $45.00 

$3,001.00 to $25,000.00 $55.00 or 1.25% of valuation, whichever is greater. 

$25,000.00 and greater $321.50 or 1.0% of valuation, whichever is greater. 

  

C. Accessory Building or Structures. 

1. Each cabana or ramada $95.00 

2. Each private garage $110.00 

3. Each awning garage $45.00 

4. Each porch, deck $45.00 

5. Each storage shed $30.00 

  

(Ord. 419 § 4 (part), 1994: prior code § 8-5.03)  

15.16.040 Inspections, investigations and other fees. 

A. All construction, installation or work shall be inspected as required by the Uniform Building Code, 
including Section 305.  

B. Fees for other than normal inspections, field or office technical services shall be as specified by the 
Uniform Building Code, Table No 3-A.  

C. Whenever any work for which a permit is required has been commenced without first obtaining the 
permit, a special investigation shall be made before a permit may be issued for such work. An 
investigation fee shall be collected and shall be an amount equal and in addition to the amount of the 
permit fee required.  

(Prior code § 8-5.04)  

ITEM 7B
13 of 19



Title 15 - BUILDINGS AND CONSTRUCTION 

Chapter 15.16 MANUFACTURED BUILDINGS AND MOBILEHOME PARKS 

Ordinance 531 Exhibit C 3 

Article II Mobilehome Park and Mobilehome Subdivision Construction Permits 

15.16.050 Permit required. 

15.16.060 Permit fees. 

15.16.070 Other inspections and fees. 

 

 

15.16.050 Permit required. 

A permit shall be required for the construction and installation of all improvements made to a 
mobilehome subdivision or mobilehome park.  

(Ord. 419 § 5 (part), 1994: prior code § 8-6.01)  

15.16.060 Permit fees. 

The fees for a permit to construct, install, enlarge, alter or repair any improvement within a 
mobilehome park or mobilehome subdivision shall be as follows:  

A.  Plan Review Fee (minimum charge 1/2 hour) 
$45.00 per 

hour 

B.  Electrical Permit Fees: 
 

1.  Each park service 37.50 

 2.  Each unit substation or secondary distribution transformer  18.50 

 3.  Each alteration or replacement of a service or transformer 18.50 

 4.  Each individual lot service  18.50 

 5.  Each alteration, repair or replacement of individual lot service equipment  18.50 

 6.  Each street light, including the conduit, conductors and controls  18.50 

 7.  Other electrical apparatus, circuits, conduits and conductors for which a permit is 

required, but for which no fee is set forth herein  
11.00 

 8.  Permit Issuance  
 

ITEM 7B
14 of 19



Title 15 - BUILDINGS AND CONSTRUCTION 

Chapter 15.16 MANUFACTURED BUILDINGS AND MOBILEHOME PARKS 

Ordinance 531 Exhibit C 4 

 For issuing each permit 15.00 

 For issuing each supplemental permit 4.50 

9.  Minimum electrical permit fee  30.00 

C.  Plumbing Permit Fees 
 

1.  Each park drain system 14.00 

 2.  Each private sewage disposal system or park treatment installation  40.00 

 3.  Each individual lot sewer 15.00 

 4.  Each alteration or repair of drainage or vent piping  7.00 

 5.  Each water service  7.00 

 6.  Each backflow prevention device  7.00 

 7.  Each alteration, repair or replacement of water fixtures or equipment  7.00 

 8.  Each lawn sprinkler system  7.00 

 9.  Each fire hydrant or riser  7.00 

 10.  Each gas piping system  7.00 

 11.  Each installation of a LPG tank of 60 gallons capacity or more  7.00 

 12.  Each mobilehome lot gas riser  7.00 

 13.  Each alteration, repair or replacement of gas distribution equipment  7.00 

 14.  Each installation of equipment for which no fee is listed  7.00 

 15. Permit Issuance  
 

ITEM 7B
15 of 19



Title 15 - BUILDINGS AND CONSTRUCTION 

Chapter 15.16 MANUFACTURED BUILDINGS AND MOBILEHOME PARKS 

Ordinance 531 Exhibit C 5 

 For issuing each permit 20.00 

 For issuing each supplemental permit 10.00 

 16.  Minimum plumbing permit  30.00 

  

(Ord. 419 § 5 (part), 1994: prior code § 8-6.02)  

15.16.070 Other inspections and fees. 

A. All construction, installation and work shall be inspected as required by state law and/or the Uniform 
Building Code, including Section 305.  

B. Fees for work not covered herein and fees for other than normal inspection, field or office technical 
services shall be as specified in Chapter 15.04 of this title.  

C. Whenever any work for which a permit is required has been commenced without first obtaining the 
permit, a special investigation shall be made before a permit may be issued for such work. An 
investigation fee shall be collected and shall be equal to and in addition to, the amount of the permit 
fee required.  

(Ord. 419 § 5 (part), 1994: prior code § 8-6.03)  

Article III Regulation of Temporary Occupancy of Mobilehomes Manufactured Homes, 

Trailers or Recreational Vehicles 

15.16.080 Definitions. 

15.16.090 Temporary occupancy permits—When required. 

15.16.100 Conditions of approval for temporary occupancy permits. 

15.16.110 Duration of temporary occupancy permits. 

15.16.120 Application or refund of deposit. 

15.16.130 Fees. 

15.16.140 Appeals. 

15.16.150 Violation of article—Penalty. 

 

 

15.16.080 Definitions. 

For the purpose of this article, unless otherwise apparent from the context, certain words and 
phrases used, in this article are defined as follows:  

"Mobilehome" shall be as defined in Section 17.08.540 of this code.  

ITEM 7B
16 of 19



Title 15 - BUILDINGS AND CONSTRUCTION 

Chapter 15.16 MANUFACTURED BUILDINGS AND MOBILEHOME PARKS 

Ordinance 531 Exhibit C 6 

"Moveable vehicle," "trailer" and "recreational vehicle" means any motorhome, trailer, travel trailer, 
tent trailer, fifth wheel trailer, camp car, van or van conversion, camper shell or unit (whether or not it is 
truck mounted) or other similar vehicles (motorized or not) not built or intended for permanent fixed situs 
occupancy.  

"Occupation" or "occupancy" means the use of a mobilehome, trailer or recreational vehicle as a 
place of human habitation or as a dwelling, when used by one or more individual or family for living and 
sleeping.  

(Prior code § 8-7.01)  

15.16.090 Temporary occupancy permits—When required. 

A. No permit shall be required for the occupation of a moveable vehicle for less than twenty-one (21) 
days; provided, that in the discretion of the building official, health, safety and sanitation 
requirements of the city are met and that a nuisance to surrounding properties is not created. In the 
event the building official determines a temporary occupancy for less than twenty-one (21) days 
violates health, safety or sanitation ordinances or regulations or a nuisance is created for 
surrounding properties he or she shall take action or refer the matter for appropriate corrective action 
pursuant to other provisions of this code.  

B. A permit shall be required for occupation of a moveable vehicle on a site or sites, on public or private 
property, within city limits for a time period exceeding twenty-one (21) days within any three hundred 
sixty-five (365) day period.  

C. Nothing herein shall authorize the occupancy of an automobile for any period. 

(Prior code § 8-7.02)  

15.16.100 Conditions of approval for temporary occupancy permits. 

A. Applications for temporary occupancy permits, when required, shall be submitted to the city building 
official and shall be granted only upon review and consideration of the following:  

1. Compliance with health and safety regulations; 

2. Potential for disturbance to adjacent property uses; 

3. The applicant's justification for the request; and 

4. The specific length of time of proposed occupancy. 

B. The building official may issue a temporary occupancy permit for only when all of the following 
conditions: are met:  

1. When for construction-related temporary occupancy, a building permit for a permanent dwelling 
or building has been issued;  

2. The proposed temporary siting does not violate any valid existing deed restrictions or applicable 
covenants, conditions or restrictions (CC&Rs) of record;  

3. The mobilehome, trailer or recreational vehicle will, at all times, be connected to the approved 
permanent water supply and sewage disposal facility;  

4. The building permit and temporary occupancy permit holder shall agree in writing to hold the 
city harmless for any damages or injuries which may result from the approval of a temporary 
occupancy permit;  

ITEM 7B
17 of 19



Title 15 - BUILDINGS AND CONSTRUCTION 

Chapter 15.16 MANUFACTURED BUILDINGS AND MOBILEHOME PARKS 

Ordinance 531 Exhibit C 7 

5. The applicant shall deposit a bond or cash amount equal to the cost of removal of the 
mobilehome, trailer or recreational vehicle, but in no event less than two hundred fifty dollars 
($250.00).  

(Prior code § 8-7.03)  

15.16.110 Duration of temporary occupancy permits. 

A. Temporary occupancy permits shall not exceed the following periods: 

1. For non-construction-related temporary occupancy, three months, with no more than three 
renewals upon approval by the building official and payment of the fees for each renewal;  

2. For construction-related temporary occupancy, a maximum of one year, provided that after 
issuance, the building permit shall be maintained in a current status. In the event that the 
building permit expires or is suspended or revoked, any mobilehome, trailer or recreational 
vehicle shall be removed from the parcel within thirty (30) days and occupancy shall 
immediately terminate. Any building permit extension or reapplication may not include a 
temporary occupancy permit for the same use previously granted.  

B. If, in the opinion of the building official, the terms and conditions of a temporary occupancy permit 
are violated, the building official may suspend or revoke the permit.  

(Prior code § 8-7.04)  

15.16.120 Application or refund of deposit. 

A. The deposit or bond required by Section 15.16.100(B)(5) of this chapter shall be refunded upon the 
removal of the mobilehome, trailer or recreational vehicle from the site for which a temporary permit 
has been issued on or before the date of the expiration of the permit or within thirty (30) days from 
the suspension or revocation of the permit or the related building permit, whichever date is sooner.  

B. In the event that the mobilehome, trailer or recreational vehicle is not removed from the site for which 
a temporary occupancy permit has been granted at the expiration of the permit or within thirty (30) 
days from the suspension or revocation of the permit or the related building permit, the deposit may 
be applied by the city to the actual cost of removal and any storage or related fees incurred by the 
city. Any costs reasonably incurred by the city not covered or satisfied by the deposit shall be paid to 
the city as a condition of recovery of possession of the mobilehome, trailer or recreational vehicle.  

(Prior code § 8-7.06)  

15.16.130 Fees. 

The fee for temporary occupancy permits shall be seventy-five dollars ($75.00) per each three-month 
period provided for in the term of permit. The city council may increase such fees as deemed necessary 
in the future by resolution.  

(Prior code § 8-7.07)  

15.16.140 Appeals. 

Any decision of the building official pursuant to this article may be appealed to the planning 
commission by any applicant for or holder of a temporary occupancy permit or other party adversely 
affected by such decision by the filing of a written notice of appeal stating the grounds for the appeal with 
the building official or city clerk. The planning commission shall hear and decide any appeal at the next 

ITEM 7B
18 of 19



Title 15 - BUILDINGS AND CONSTRUCTION 

Chapter 15.16 MANUFACTURED BUILDINGS AND MOBILEHOME PARKS 

Ordinance 531 Exhibit C 8 

regularly scheduled commission meeting to be held more than seventy-two (72) hours following the filing 
of a notice of an appeal. A copy of the notice of appeal shall be given to the permit holder by personal 
service or certified mail if the appeal is filed by any other party. The filing of an appeal shall not stay the 
suspension or revocation of a temporary occupancy permit.  

(Prior code § 8-7.08)  

15.16.150 Violation of article—Penalty. 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this article, any violation of this article or any modification 
thereto, shall be punishable as an infraction, as provided in Chapter 1.24 of this code.  

(Prior code § 8-7.09)  

ITEM 7B
19 of 19



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

FOR THE DECEMBER 14, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: John Schempf, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Amy Feagans, Planning Director 

DATE: December 6, 2016 

SUBJECT: Acceptance of Donated Property 

 

 N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:   FROM FUND:   

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 50-2016 accepting the property identified as 433 N. Main 
Street, APN 006-010-015 

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY: 
The parcel at 433 N. Main Street is roughly a 3,959 square foot parcel currently under the ownership of the 
Neil Wheeler Living Trust. Recently, the City was notified by the Successor Trustee that the subject parcel 
was to be donated to the City as part of the Trust Settlement Agreement. For the City to officially acquire 
the property, the City Council must take formal action accepting the donation on behalf of the City. 
 
The 3,959 + square foot parcel is located at the north end of Main Street just south of State Highway 174 
(refer to Exhibit 2 - Location Map). The relatively level property is zoned IG (Industrial Greenbelt) and free 
of debris and weeds however its development potential is limited due to its small size and industrial zoning 
designation. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW  
This action by the City Council is exempt from environmental review pursuant to Sections 15325 
(preservation of open space, habitat or historical resources) of the California Environmental Quality Act.  
 
FINANCIAL AND/OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
A review of Placer County records indicates that property taxes for the 2016 year were approximately $207 
of which the City received a small percentage (no more than one percent), therefore accepting the 
property will not significantly impact the revenue to the City due to loss of tax income.  
 
While this is a donation to the City, there may be maintenance and upkeep costs in the future. Given the 
small size of the parcel these are expected to be minimal. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 50-2016 
Location Map 
Site Photographs 
Assessor’s Parcel Map Page 6-01 

ITEM 7C
1 of 6



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 50-2016 
 

ACCEPTING THE DONATION OF THE PARCEL OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS 
433 N. MAIN STREET (APN 006-010-015)  

 
 
 WHEREAS, the property at 433 N. Main Street is a 3,959 square foot parcel located 
at the north end of Main Street just south of State Route 174; and 
 
 WHEREAS, ownership of the parcel is currently held in the Trust of Mr. Neil 
Wheeler; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Trust of Mr. Wheeler establishes that the Parcel be donated to the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, transfers of ownership of interests in land to the City is exempt from 
CEQA review; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City appreciates the generosity of the Owner donating the Property 
to the City. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax that 
the proposed donation of the property known as 433 N. Main Street from the Owner to the 
City is hereby approved, and that the City Manager is authorized to accept the Property on 
behalf of the City. 
 
 THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at a 
regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 14th day of  
December 2016 by the following roll call vote of the Council: 
 
Ayes:    
Noes:    
Absent:   
Abstain:   

 ___________________________________ 
      Tom Parnham, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM 7C
2 of 6



z •: f v\I 1/0 (31 1

rv%1K:1 r--p’\
:- Sparrow : c’r I

ng c2s \\SunayLn. I tN \ -
COLFAX AREA

\C, CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
\ 2 S. Railroad Ave.

‘4. \ Colfax, CA 95713

‘A ‘ (530) 346-8888
r4\ i- — ILII! \ \ \

COCFA)’
UHIGH SCHOOL j : ill? q

i I ç
M. SCHOOL z ,J 3

-,,\‘&‘ ‘6) f L;; ‘- IJpine Q-) •

Hutter Sch001 v;

.
St

Vista
>

‘7 et Dep0 ‘ Ave.

v& DeP0tS
042 ?‘9pZ

. o- L! . ;a$s Valley St• g
•- (i ci;1 COb, randview St.s ç Yard

Rd.
Church Ist. co, Mat “ M View St.c

_ st Sira’

I 5 7 c’& r: Ci • ,//J? St. .

et- ‘0 ‘ 4i _ > CemeteryG
LInco,, t. (I) ColfaxCem.Rd.) . . h/g0

CENTRAL SI.
Canyon Ct.

reoaä
I :aId

I x1j1 _ oo Seims Ave.%% \o , Avenue .\ \
-0 Q

w
\‘\ I )9, ,4(\\%sO

-q
#FiIIm& .:y II < .

C)LQj4J >—, II a> C”— II ô.A
f’p I I I . 0 . C

433 N. Main Street

APN 006-010-015

ITEM 7C
3 of 6



. .
:. ‘. •

“

‘ 4 I

L ‘- . ;‘

c

; ‘ ::

1

I

I
j

J

I

.

F:I. . . .

._:.,

I •

:

ITEM 7C
4 of 6



.‘

ITEM 7C
5 of 6



0>
OU)
CU)

_4.U)e.
<U)

occ

0‘.

:
OD
m

.-D

C

ar!3

-,0

0

0

3

0

pPP

O9

0

>

0

0

3

C
a
3

0
0

U)
m

pJ’

0.
0
0

30

ID

w

00

if
C
3

0
—

0
0

ITEM 7C
6 of 6



1 

 

 

FOR THE DECEMBER 14, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM:  Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 
PREPARED By: Lorraine Cassidy 

DATE: December 8, 20169 
SUBJECT: Results of November 8, 2016 Election of City Council Members and City Treasurer, 

and Voter Response to Measure H 
 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  N/A FROM FUND:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDED  ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 51-2016: Declaring Results Of The General Municipal 
Election Held On November 8, 2016. 

 

BACKGROUND: 
A general municipal election was held on November 8, 2016.  That election was consolidated with the 
statewide general election as allowed by law.   
 
In Colfax, 1129 votes were cast for the office of City Council Member.  Four candidates ran to fill two seats.  
One candidate ran to fill the office of City Treasurer and 604 votes were cast for that position.  Measure H 
was also on the ballot, garnering 805 votes.  Measure H reads:  

 
Shall the City of Colfax adopt an ordinance which allows and regulates marijuana dispensaries, 
cultivation, delivery and use, and imposes a sales tax of up to fifteen percent (15%) on the sale of 
marijuana and marijuana products, which shall be in addition to established municipal and state 
taxes on such sales, and dedicates all revenues derived from such tax to reduce City business and 
residential sewer service charges. 

 
Measure H must have 2/3 (66.67%) of the vote to go into effect.  A 2/3 vote was required because the City 
Council restricted the use of the proceeds of the proposed tax to reducing sewer use charges. That made 
the tax a "special tax" under California Constitution Article XIIIC, Section 1(d): "'Special tax' means any tax 
imposed for specific purposes, including a tax imposed for specific purposes which is placed into a general 
fund." A 2/3 vote is required for cities to impose a special tax. See California Constitution Article XIIIA, 
Section 4. 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 7D
1 of 4



2 

 

The result of the official canvass of the votes is: 
 

Candidate for City Council Member Number of Votes Percent of Votes Cast 

Kim A Douglass 324 28.70% 

Wally Costa 313 27.72% 

Marnie Mendoza 270 24.71% 

Nicole Maldonado 207 18.33% 

 
Six (6) votes were cast for write-in candidates. 
 

Candidate for City Treasurer Number of Votes Percent of Votes Cast 

Timothy D Ryan 592 98.01% 

 
Twelve (12) votes were cast for write-in candidates. 
 

Measure H Number of Votes Percent of Votes Cast 

Yes 514 63.85% 

No 291 36.15% 

 
The official canvass of the votes establishes that Kim A. Douglass and Wally Costa were duly elected to the 
office of Member of the Colfax City Council; Timothy D. Ryan was duly elected to the office of City 
Treasurer and Measure H did not pass.  The official canvass of the votes was timely submitted as required 
by law. 
 
California law requires the City Council to adopt a resolution declaring the fact of the election, the total 
votes cast, the names of the persons voted for, the office for which each person was voted for and the 
number of votes given to each person.  See Elections Code Section 10263.  The Resolution must be 
adopted before the new Council Members are administered the oath of office. The attached Resolution 
meets all legal requirements. 
 
Since this was a consolidated election, the City Council is required to declare the results of the election no 
later than its first regular meeting after the official canvass of election returns.  December 14 is the first 
regular City Council meeting after the official canvass and is the appropriate time to adopt the proposed 
Resolution. 
 

 
ATTACHMENT: 

Resolution 51-2016 

 

ITEM 7D
2 of 4



1 

 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 51-2016 
 

DECLARING RESULTS OF THE GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION HELD ON 
NOVEMBER 8, 2016 

 

 Whereas, a General Municipal Election was held in the City of Colfax on Tuesday, 
November 8, 2016 as required by law; and 
 

 Whereas, notice of said election was duly and regularly given, voting precincts were 
properly established and furnished, and in all respects said election was held and 
conducted and the votes cast thereat received and canvassed and the returns thereto made, 
determined and declared in time, form and manner as required by the laws of the State of 
California providing for and regulating municipal elections in general law cities; and 
 

 Whereas, the City Council has received the canvass of the County Clerk certifying the 
results of said election and finds that the number of votes cast, the names of the persons 
voted for and other matters required by law, to be as hereinafter stated. 
 

 Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved And Declared by the City Council of the City of 
Colfax as follows: 
 

 1. A General Municipal Election was held and conducted in the City of Colfax on 
Tuesday, the 8th day of November 2016 in time, form and manner as required by law with 
the following results. 
 

 2. There were 2 voting precincts established in the City of Colfax for the 
purpose of holding said election. 
 

 3. The total number of votes cast in the City of Colfax at said election was 1129 
for members of the City Council, 604 votes for the office of City Treasurer, and 805 
concerning measure H.  
 

 4. The names of the persons receiving votes, the offices for which they received 
votes and the number of votes received by each of said persons are as follows: 
 
Candidate Office Sought Number of Votes 
Kim A Douglass City Council Member 324 
Wally Costa City Council Member 313 
Marnie Mendoza City Council Member 279 
Nicole Maldonado City Council Member 207 
Write – in  City Council Member 6 
Timothy D. Ryan City Treasurer 592 
Write – in  City Treasurer 12 

ITEM 7D
3 of 4



2 

 

 5. At the General Municipal Election held in the City of Colfax on November 8, 
2016, Kim A Douglass and Wally Costa were duly elected to the office of City Council 
Member for the full term of four (4) years from and after November 8, 2016 and until their 
successors are elected and qualified, as determined by a majority of the votes cast. 
 
 6. At the General Municipal Election held in the City of Colfax on November 8 
2016, Timothy D. Ryan was duly elected to the office of City Treasurer for the full term of 
four (4) years from and after November 8, 2016 and until a successor is elected and 
qualified, as determined by a majority of the votes cast. 
 
 7. At the General Municipal Election held in the City of Colfax on November 8, 
2016, Measure H:  Shall the City of Colfax adopt an ordinance which allows and regulates 
marijuana dispensaries, cultivation, delivery and use, and imposes a sales tax of up to 
fifteen percent (15%) on the sale of marijuana and marijuana products, which shall be in 
addition to established municipal and state taxes on such sales, and dedicates all revenues 
derived from such tax to reduce City business and residential sewer service charges was 
considered by the voters.  As a measure imposing a special tax, the measure required a 2/3 
vote.  805 votes were cast regarding Measure H. 
 

 Measure H Vote Distribution 
YES 514 Votes (63.85%) 
NO 291 Votes (36.15%) 

 
Measure H did not pass 
  

 The foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly adopted at a regular meeting of 
the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 14th of December by the following vote of 
the Council: 
 

AYES:     
NOES:   
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN:  
 
        ____________________________ 
        Tom Parnham, Mayor  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk  

 

ITEM 7D
4 of 4



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

FOR THE DECEMBER 14, 2016 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM:  Mick Cabral, City Attorney 

DATE: December 6, 2016 

SUBJECT: Rotation of City Council Officers: Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  N/A FROM FUND:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDED  ACTION: By Separate Motions, Select Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem 

The ceremonial nature of the first Colfax City Council meeting in December after a general election usually 

involves administering the oath of office to the successful candidates and rotating the Mayor and Mayor Pro 

Tem chairs. To a limited extent, that process is statutory. Government Code §36801 requires the City 

Council to meet at the meeting at which the declaration of the election results is made and, after the 

declaration of the election results and the installation of the elected officials, to choose a Mayor and a Mayor 

Pro Tem.   

 The order in which this is done is therefore established by statute.  December 14 will be the meeting at 

which the election results are declared.  Once that occurs, the newly elected officials will be administered the 

oath of office.  The Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem are thereafter selected by vote of the Council. 

 Government Code §36801 dictates what must be done in that a Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem must be selected 

but it does not dictate how the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem are selected. In December, 2002, the Colfax City 

Council adopted a policy whereby the rotation occurs by seniority on the Council, excepting those who have 

already served.  That policy provides, in relevant part: 

“…the Office of the Mayor is rotated yearly according to seniority on the Council with the exception 

of those already having served, while this Council sits.” 

 That policy was reiterated in the December 14, 2004 minutes and was written into the agenda for the 

December 12, 2006 meeting.  The only deviation from the policy occurred in December 2005, when a 

resolution was adopted honoring the request of the then Mayor Pro Tem not to rotate into the Mayor’s 

seat.  The December, 2005 resolution provides that the established rotation policy was not being modified on 

a permanent basis. 

 The December, 2002 action was only to adopt a policy, not an ordinance binding on future Councils. 

Policies by their nature provide guidance but are not binding. In the case of selection of the Mayor and 

Mayor Pro Tem, the Council can follow any process it chooses for selection of its Mayor and Mayor Pro 

Tem for 2017.  

ITEM 7F
1 of 3



2 

 

  

The phrase “while this Council sits” injects ambiguity into what the 2002 Council intended because the 

phrase “this Council” is subject to interpretation. On one hand, if “this Council” is interpreted in its narrow, 

literal sense to refer only to the 2002 Council that adopted the policy, then application of the policy is limited 

to the members of the 2002 Council. That would make sense if, for example, there was disagreement 

between the 2002 Council members over who should next sit as Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem.  

 Aside from being a literal interpretation of the language selected, this narrow interpretation is consistent 

with the general proposition that a Council cannot bind future Councils on matters of policy. Each Council 

has the right to decide which of its members will serve as Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem. The law only requires 

that those offices be filled. How those offices are filled is a matter of Council policy. 

 On the other hand, if “this Council” is broadly interpreted to mean “the Colfax City Council”, then the 

policy adopted in 2002 is arguably intended to apply to future Councils. It has apparently been followed by 

Councils after 2002, with limited exception. Again, however, it is only a policy, not a binding ordinance.  

 The rotation “according to seniority” also injects ambiguity into the process. If seniority was the only 

criteria, then the two Council members with the longest tenure would continue to rotate into and out of the 

Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem offices. That would not make sense and would not be in keeping with Colfax’s 

typical practice. 

 “Seniority” can refer to the total amount of time a member of the Council sits if, for example, a Council 

member is elected to successive terms. It can also refer to the amount of time a member sits since his or her 

most recent election. The latter is how the Council has historically interpreted “seniority”. 

 For example, Mr. Douglass and Mr. Parnham were elected to office in November, 2012. Donna Barkle 

became Mayor for 2013 because she had most recently been appointed in lieu of an unopposed election in 

November, 2010 and therefore had the most seniority on the Council. Mr. Hesch was appointed Mayor Pro 

Tem for 2013 because he had been appointed to fill Suzanne Roberts’ vacancy in September, 2012 and had 

the second most “seniority” on the Council, having been there before Kim and Tom were elected.  

Mr. Hesch became Mayor for 2014. Since Mr. Douglass received the most votes at the November, 2012 

election, he was made Mayor Pro Tem for 2014. It was Kim’s turn to serve as Mayor for 2015 and Tom, who 

was next in line, became 2015’s Mayor Pro Tem and 2016’s Mayor. 

Mr. Delfino, Mr. Harvey and Mr. Hesch were elected at the November, 2014 election. Ken received the 

highest number of votes, followed by Steve and then by Tony. If Ken had remained on the Council, it would 

have been his turn to serve as Mayor Pro Tem in 2016 and Mayor in 2017 because, based on past Council 

practice, he would have been the most “senior”. When Ken resigned, Steve became the highest in “seniority” 

because he received more votes than Tony in 2014 and, based on past practice, was made Mayor Pro Tem in 

2016.  

 Following that practice, Mr. Harvey would be next in line to serve as Mayor in 2017.  Mr. Hesch would be 

next in line to serve as Mayor Pro Tem for 2017 because he was most recently elected in 2014, before Mr. 

Stockwin’s appointment, and therefore has more “seniority” on the Council. If the Council decides to follow 

the same historical practice, Mr. Hesch will serve as Mayor in 2018 and Mr. Stockwin will be Mayor Pro 

Tem in 2018. Will would precede Mr. Douglass and Mr. Costa into that office because Will was on the 

Council before Mr. Douglass and Mr. Costa were elected, or re-elected as the case may be, in 2016. 

ITEM 7F
2 of 3



3 

 

 There appear to be two basic scenarios from which the Council must chose to resolve this issue: 

 Scenario 1:  Selection Based On Tenure On The Council From A Member’s Most Recent Election. 

Under this scenario, Mr. Harvey and Mr. Hesch were elected at the same time but Mr. Harvey is “senior” 

because he secured more votes. Mr. Stockwin is third in seniority because he was appointed before the 

November 8, 2016 election. Mr. Douglass would be fourth because he was newly elected (or newly re-

elected) on November 8, 2016 and received more votes than Mr. Costa. This creates the following rotation: 

2016    Mayor Parnham, Mayor Pro Tem Harvey 

2017    Mayor Harvey, Mayor Pro Tem Hesch 

2018    Mayor Hesch, Mayor Pro Tem Stockwin 

2019    Mayor Stockwin, Mayor Pro Tem Douglass 

2020    Mayor Douglass, Mayor Pro Tem Costa 

2021    Mayor Costa, Mayor Pro Tem depends on composition of the Council. 

 Scenario 2:  Selection Based On Rotation. 

 Under this scenario, Mr. Stockwin has never served as Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem. Mr. Stockwin has more 

seniority on the Council than Mr. Costa so Mr. Stockwin would serve as Mayor Pro Tem before Mr. Costa 

because the two remaining members of the Council (Mr. Douglass and Mr. Hesch) have already held both 

offices. This, again, depends upon when “seniority” begins to accrue. I started with 2014 because two 

members of the current Council served as Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem beginning that year.  

2014    Mayor Hesch, Mayor Pro Tem Douglass 

2015    Mayor Douglass, Mayor Pro Tem Parnham 

2016    Mayor Parnham, Mayor Pro Tem Harvey 

2017    Mayor Harvey, Mayor Pro Tem Stockwin 

2018    Mayor Stockwin, Mayor Pro Tem Costa 

2019    Mayor Costa, Mayor Pro Tem Hesch 

2020    Mayor Hesch, Mayor Pro Tem Douglass 

2021    Mayor Douglass, Mayor Pro Tem Harvey 

  

This issue is exclusively for the City Council to decide. The history is interesting, if not a bit confusing, but 

selection of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem is a policy issue for the Council, not staff or the City Attorney. I 

recommend that Council clarify this process for the future benefit of all involved.  

 

ITEM 7F
3 of 3


	00A161214 Agenda
	03A 161109 Minutes
	03B Cash Summary Oct 2016
	2017-04 Staff Report Cash Summary Oct 2016
	161214 Cash Summary Data 

	06A Sierra Oaks Estates
	161214 SR Sierra Oaks Estates 
	Resolution 48-2016 Sierra Oaks Approvals
	FINAL CONDITIONS 2
	IS-Neg Dec Attachment 3
	Attachment 4
	Attachment 5
	Attachment 6
	Attachment 7
	Attachment 8
	Attachment 9

	07A Purchase Public Works Vehicle
	Public Works Vehicle Purchase Staff Report 12.14.2016
	Resolution 49-2016 Purchase 2 Public Works Trucks Winner Chevy
	Public Works Vehicle Purchase Support Documents 12.14.2016

	07B Ordinance 531 Introduction
	161214 SR Ordinance 531
	Ordinance 531 Building Code Update Cover
	Ordinance 531 Building Code Update
	Exhibit B
	Exhibit C

	07C Wheeler Property
	SR 433 N Main  Prop Donation 12-14-16
	Resolution 50-2016 Wheeler Property Acceptance
	Wheeler Property Backup

	07D Election Resultspdf
	161214 SR Election Results
	Resolution 51 - 2016 Election Results

	07F 161214 Council Rotation Staff Report



